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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Heng
Sheng Holdings Limited (formerly Known as Kong Shum Union
Property Management (Holding) Limited) (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.

BEBBEXZMARAE
([ B2 ) GEM 2 $5 8

GEMIYESL - Ty R E MR L
NARGERSREBBNAFRME—E
EHHHE AERENATETHERE
REZEQANELERR  YERKBEES
HFNEZEARSELHRERE - EMWESE
BREMSERRGEMBESEXRAE
REREE -

HAGEM LT AT EMEFE AR  F£6EM
EENRFUESERBIEREETEZ
BEARZBANTEEBERK 0 BR&EE
REECGEMEENEZSSERRBENT

15 o

IR E T RRGEMEE 5 _F A A ([ GEM_E
AR ]) < ETRHA B IELERER L
A (BT R R E R EHE (R BRA
A ARFRIER - ARAIEEF([E
F)BERFRES A EERELE T
£ WEELH—EEEHERR - BK
FHRMRIET  AREEENETE
AT B EERTE - HERELHF
B3 o KA & IR T B F R
B & ATENT (] BB AR & Bk

Annual Report 2017/18
2017/18F



2

CONTENTS
B &

Pages B X
Corporate Information AEER 3
Group Structure SE%EE 6
Chairman’s Statement FEHRE 8
Management Discussion and Analysis EEEBHWR N 11
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management EERSHREEERRE 34
Corporate Governance Report LEERRE 43
Directors’ Report EESRE 59
Environmental, Social and Governance Report RiE - HERERREE 72
Independent Auditor’s Report BIZEERE 84
Audited Financial Statements REZBEREK
Consolidated: mE
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other BmkHAEERER 91
Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position IR & 93
Statement of Changes in Equity o Bk 95
Statement of Cash Flows WEMER 96
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements FREVHmRME 98
Five Year Financial Summary LEHBHME 183

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA



Executive Directors

Mr. Eric Todd
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Liming (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 6 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Company Secretary

Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho

Compliance Officer

Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Authorized Representatives

Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho

Audit Committee

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Nomination Committee

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

HITES
ERITEE

Al ERA e
FRIEZSELE

FHITES

BRAKLE (TE)
(A2018F3 A6 HEZET)

BYFHITES

BEmTE
AR ot
BERTE

REAME
ERHE LA
BREME
] FEEF 554

REAR

A fERT ok
b

BEREES

WS et (2%
BEmitt
BERLE

FMEES

MRS e (2/E)
e fERT ok
BEmTE
BERTE

REZES

BEWELE(LE)
Al FERT SE 4
AR e
BEzikE

Annual Report 2017/18
2017/18F



CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

Auditor

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
Unit 701, 7/F., Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Legal Adviser of the Company as to Hong Kong Laws

Patrick Mak & Tse

Rooms 901-905, Sth Floor
Wing On Centre

11 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
25/F, Tower 6

The Gateway

Harbour City

Kowloon, Hong Kong

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
G/F, The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Unit 1001, 10 Floor, Chung Nam House
59 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

%D

hE L EE A E ISR A A
w5

BL3ERE 5185
ERERPL7ET0IE

RRBEBEEER

BERERRADTT
BB
FHREFRI1HR
KEZH D
9#£901-905=

FEAERRIT

PEEREBT(EMNRDERAT
EBNEE

B

BERAE

FORE25HE
ERBT(FB)ERAT
EBFIR

SRAREHI5H

RIRAOMH T

AR ER

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BMEENEBTESE MY
BB

EH53E P 5957
FE1T1021001E

IRRMBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands



Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

Website of the Company

www.kongshum.com.hk

GEM Stock Code

8181

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEFR

BRROBFRTIE
BERFBLERAT
BALA

25833851
MR 5 EH2H
33183301-04%

AAEME
www.kongshum.com.hk

GEMR 17X 5%
8181

Annual Report 2017/18
2017/18F )



6

GROUP STRUCTURE
5 2275

As at the date of this report: B2 B HA :

100%

Kong Shum Union Property
Management (BVI) Limited
AR AMKER
(RBERARS)ERAT

100%

‘ 100% 100%

Lucky Stone Investments Limited

Happy Living Network
Technology Limited
A BB TR R AR

100% 30% 100%

Kong Shum Union Property
Management Group Limited

Lucky Stone Finance Limited

Happy Living Network Technology

Dakin Holding Inc. (Hong Kong) Limited

100% 100%

ERBAMEERER LA EARAE BT (F7E)
BRAR ARAT
‘ 100% 100% 100% 100%

Yorkshire Property Management

Lucky Stone Property el

Kong Shum Union Property
Management Company Limited

Q& V Security Company Limited

K-King Cleaning Services Limited

One Direction Property
Management Company Limited

fnvestment Limited HEEDE ERRHERAT AR NAEEERLY Ui L EELEL TN BENRERERAR
70% 100% 100%
SEimp AR E A RAT Forlune;rrg:d; ggsgrgr% Limited More ;s;’\ggsggg%\mned
Note:
Hist
Place of

Incorporations: Nature of Services:
N s o
SR 3L 3th B PR 7 M6

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kong

Cayman Islands

Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited)

BAEZRAR AR (R AR S MEETE ()

BRRF])

Kong Shum Property Management Group Limited
BRBAMETEEEERAF

Kong Shum Union Property Management Company Limited

BRBAYEERARAA

Q & V Security Company Limited
BEERARAF

K-King Cleaning Services Limited

HBZRBERAT

Yorkshire Property Management Company Limited

HWREMEERRBERIF

Fortune Trend Investment Limited

THEREBEBR AT

More Rise Investment Limited

RAREBRAF

Lucky Stone Investments Limited
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FERS
British Virgin Islands
KBRS

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
EEELES

Investment holding

"E R

Investment holding and provision of I.T. services
BBV AR LT AR

Provision of property management services

REMEEERS

Provision of security services
RIERZ R

Provision of cleaning services by subcontracting
iR BRMEZRS

Provision of property management services

RHEMEEIRIRG

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Investment holding

AT
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Nature of Services:
PRI E:

Kong Shum Union Property Management (BVI) Limited
BREGAMEEE (RBERRES)BRAR

Happy Living Network Technology Limited

HAEEE R ER AR

Happy Living Network Technology (Hong Kong) Limited

AR BN (BB ERAF]

Lucky Stone Property Investment Limited

Lucky Stone Finance Limited

One Direction Property Management Company Limited

BREEEIRER AT

B AR EBR AR

Dakin Holding Inc.

British Virgin Islands
RBERLRE

British Virgin Islands
EBELHS

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

People’s Republic of China
G
British Virgin Islands

REBELES

Investment holding
REZER

Investment holding

WA

Dormant
Eme

Dormant
4 A

Hiw s

Money lending business

MRS

Dormant
s

Provision of property management and
consultancy services

RefIR B BB MR

Provision of financial services
in Hong Kong
REBRESRRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Heng Sheng
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited) (the “Company”), | hereby
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s principal
activities were provision of property management services,
properties investment and money lending business.

During the year under review, the Group continued its
development efforts to stay competitive in the property
management market. Under our property management portfolio,
we have been awarded 17 management contracts in residential
and commercial projects mainly including Greenknoll Court with
429 units, Sing Win Factory Building with 403 units, Ka Wai
Building with 317 units and Winsing Building with 403 units.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$412.3 million (2017: HK$395.5 million),
representing an increase of 4.2% as compared with last year.
The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
was approximately HK$94.4 million (2017: HK$83.3 million),
representing an increase of approximately 13.3% as compared
with last year. The net profit margin increased by approximately
4.9% approximately from 2.6% for the year ended 31 March
2017 to 7.5% for year ended 31 March 2018.

The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$0.037 (2017: HK$0.018).

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and operation in the year
2017/2018 with shareholders in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over housing stock production
and the speeding up of the issue of housing completion in the
near future is expected to solve the issue of heavy demand on
housing. It is envisaged that the property management business
will expand simultaneously. Meanwhile, we will continue to
expand our management portfolio by capturing the continuing
outsourcing activities implemented by private residential owners,
corporations and government institutions. Since we started
property management business in 1984, giving our customers the
best service has always been our goal. Over the years, we have
grown into one of the largest property management companies in
Hong Kong. Leveraging on our experience and scale of business,
we will continue to seek for opportunities to expand the current
property management business through self-development
and/or investment(s) in suitable targets/assets, and/or through
co-operation by way of joint venture(s) with other parties. In order
to increase the profitability of this segment, we consider the cost
control is as important as expanding the management portfolio.
We are reviewing the operating performance of the property
management business and appropriate cost controls will be
implemented in the forthcoming financial year, if necessary.

Notwithstanding the Group has recorded steady increase in its
revenue since its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange which
mainly attributable to its property management services in Hong
Kong, management has extended its property management
services to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) market
during the year under review and recorded an additional revenue
of approximately HK$9.5 million (2017: Nil) from this segment.

Looking ahead, management expects the middle class of the PRC
continues to drive housing demand and living service demand.
We will extend our market presence in the PRC by rendering
living value-added services, including but not limited to the use of
internet, Internet-of-Things, and artificial intelligence technology
to enable us to provide such services as hospital, pension,
education and commerce in the community.

We believe the expansion of the business scope to the PRC
market will bring more stable and recurrent return to the Group
and increase value of the shareholders of the Company and the
success of the Group in the coming years.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest
gratitude to the management and our staff for their significant
contributions. | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all
our shareholders and investors for their endless support. With the
solid business base and the effort of all our staff, the Group will
endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Huang Liming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services primarily targeting residential properties,
properties investment and money lending business. The Group
operates under the brand name of “Kong Shum” in Hong Kong
and provides a range of management services including security,
repair and maintenance, cleaning, finance management,
administrative and legal support. Under an established functional
structure with various departments, the Group has dedicated
teams to carry out the aforementioned management services.
The Group also employs a team of security staff to provide
security services as part of the services provided under property
management contracts or under stand-alone security services
contracts. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
provided property security services for 14 properties under stand-
alone security services contracts in Hong Kong. The operating
arm of the Group’s security services is mainly Q & V Security
Company Limited (“Q&V"). The Group hires its own security staff
to provide property security services. The Group also employs
registered technicians to provide basic repair and maintenance
services to its customers if required. In relation to the cleaning
services, the Group subcontracts substantially all of its cleaning
services to third-party contractors. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Group expanded its business into provision of
money lending business.

In relation to the provision of money lending business
commenced during the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recorded loan interest income of approximately HK$1.6 million
(2017: Nil). As at 31 March 2018, the Group has loan receivables
with carrying amount of approximately HK$3.6 million (2017:
Nil). Principal terms of the loan receivables during the year are as
follows:

BEEFNWR DM

LR
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MEBE)  MERERREER - AEE
REBANE R | REATEEE - WiRHE—
RYBEERE  BREREL - HIEFRE
BRI ERE  (THRAEEIIE - 4
EREMNINRERET  AEER IS ED
F9 - BTARIER®IT EAMEERE - A%
FENESE - RLTE IREEHRTR
% EAREMETEAOLBLRER
FELRENIO IR - HE2018F3A31
HIEFE  AEERESREBEBIRZAR
BENMIABEMHEREMERELRE - &
EERTRENEERRNETEABELR
BRAR([EE]) - AEEEBERLET
REMERLTRSE - AEB MBI
BEINEFPRE(WNESTE)EAEENM
RERE - BWBERZREME » AEEBH
REDIBBIRISINA F 56 =5 A& - &
F2018F3A31HFE  AEBBREKZ
REEER -

FNEE2018F3 831 H IEFEFBIRMHE
BEEBME @ AEBSHESERFBUWA
#1608 T (20174 + ) - 201843 A
318 - AEEAREEL36085 (2017
FE)NERER - FR - BRERNE

AT

Borrowers Drawdown date Principal amount Interest rate Terms Notes
&7 RAXBH PN A= HARR Bt =E
A 17 July 2017 HK$16 million 14% per annum 6 months i), (ii)
A 20177 H17H 1,6008%& 7T 5F14% 6fE A (1), (iii)
B 18 July 2017 HK$7 million 12% per annum 6 months (i), (iii)
B 20177 H18H 700878 T HF12% 6fE A (if), (iii)
B 15 August 2017 HK$7 million 12% per annum 6 months (ii), (iif)
B 2017%8H15H 700878 T BF12% 6fE A (if), (i)
C 27 December 2017  HK$3.5 million 14% per annum 9 months

C 2017%12A27H 350857 5F14% ofil A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWR DM

OVERVIEW (continued)

Notes:

(i) Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
17 July 2017.

(i) Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15
August 2017.

(i)~ The principal amount and accrued interest were fully repaid by the
borrowers during the year ended 31 March 2018.

For the properties investment business, the Group recorded rental
income from an investment property of approximately HK$1.1

million for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

EXoE(AE)

et -

() B LA=BENFEHNARFAR2017F7

B17BE R4 °

(i)  AELAFENFFHNRALFHHH2017F8

A15BH R -

(i) EHE201843831H HFE - 2
e RFERTFE o

ABEBEREE

MMERBEEBRME - AEBREZ2018
FI3A3IB L FEHESREREYENES
WALI1108 BT (20174 « &) -

FINANCIAL REVIEW 2 JE) L
Summary Financial Performance MBREME
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FHExT FHETT 5
Revenue Yz 412,271 395,514 4.2%
Cost of services BRFG A AR (317,872) (312,206) 1.8%
Gross Profit FEH 94,399 83,308 13.3%
Gross profit margin ERZE 22.9% 21.1%  n/a T@EM
Other revenue H bz 8,384 338 2,380.5%
Share of profits of an associate FE(H—REIER & R RNE T 4,999 - nlaTNEMA
Administrative expenses TS (49,983) (51,958) (3.8%)
Other operating expenses B EEM (18,144) (17,984) (0.9%)
Finance costs DN (1,329) (196) 578.1%
Profit before tax B A5 BT A 38,326 13,508 183.7%
Income tax expense FriS A > (7,363) (3,320) 121.8%
Profit attributable to owners RATFEE AELEF
of the Company 30,963 10,188 203.9%
Net profit margin #h R =R 7.5% 2.6%  nla TN@EH

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue
was derived from its operations in Hong Kong and the PRC of
approximately HK$402.8 million (2017: HK$395.5 million) and
HK$9.5 million (2017: Nil), respectively. The Group derived
revenue of approximately HK$30.4 million and HK$33.2 million
respectively from stand-alone security services contracts for the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018 respectively, representing
approximately 7.7% and 8.1% of its total revenue.

The following table sets out the Group’s revenue by contract type
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018:

BEEFNWR DM

Wz

HE2018F3A31IBILFE » AEEKA
HEBBRPRNERERED N A
4028187870 (20174 : 3.955188 1) &950
EBAET(2017F : &) - LEE2017F &
2018F3H3IALLFE r AEEXRBFE L
REZIRIEE LW LD BIL) A3,0408 5 T
K3,320878 7 © D RMEEBRESLT7.7% K
8.1%

TRZA B F I B E20174F R 20184
3A3IALEFEAEE Y

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ million percentage  HK$ million  percentage
BEET FhEZsH BEATT FhES
Property management MEEIRIREEH
services contracts 366.9 89.0% 365.1 92.3%
Property security YERZIRIGE L)
services contracts 33.2 8.1% 30.4 7.7%
PRC Property management FEIY¥EEREE L
services contract 9.5 2.2% - -
Rental services contracts ~ fAERIEAE A 1.1 0.3% - -
Money lending services R RS 1.6 0.4% - -
412.3 100% 395.5 100%

The Group’s revenue improved by approximately 4.2% from
approximately HK$395.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 to approximately HK$412.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2018. The increase was primarily attributable to the
growth of revenue generated from security services contracts in
Hong Kong, significantly increasing by approximately 9.2% to
approximately HK$33.2 million and its property management
services in the PRC of approximately HK$9.5 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018. During the year, the number of
management service contracts obtained by the Group had been
increased by 3 from 431 during the year ended 31 March 2017 to
434 for the year ended 31 March 2018. Revenue generated from
property management services contracts in Hong Kong recorded
a slightly increase of approximately 0.5% to approximately
HK$366.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.

AREBHWABEE2017FE3A318 IEF
[E4)3.955B B T EF414.2% =& =2018
F3A31BILFEEXL.123BB T o %L
FEARBBRETREAHELEN W RIG
£ HZE2018F3A31 B IFFEEAEIEM
#19.2%E=490.3328%8 T © NEFRENYE
B ARG E £ RIS 18 N 499508 B T © F
A REBRESNEERKE NS E BE
F2017F3A31HIEFEM43115 8 131%
ZHZE2018F3 A31 B IFFEMA341 - &
FE2018F3A3IHIEFE BAEMEER
ARFS B #IE £ R USRS A IN410.5% E 4
3.669E& T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

REVENUE (continued)

The following graph sets out the revenue for the years ended 31
March 2016, 2017, 2018.

Revenue W %5
HK$ million BE®ETT

420

Wzt (&)

TE&EEZE20164F « 20174 K 201843
A31HIEFERKES -

410 412.3
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310
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290
280

2016 2017

COST OF SERVICES

The total cost of services amounted to approximately HK$312.2
million and HK$317.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2018 respectively, representing approximately 78.9% and
77.1% respectively of the Group’s revenue. Increase in the cost
of services during the year of approximately 1.8% was mainly due
to the increase on the wages of the front line staff of the Group.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 13.3%
from approximately HK$83.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 to approximately HK$94.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. The gross profit margin was approximately 21.1%
and 22.9% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018
respectively. The Group negotiated and adjusted the service fees
in order to reflect the increase in costs and to maintain a growth
on the gross profit margin.

The following graph sets out the gross profit for the years ended
31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018.

EF
BEBTT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company was increased
by approximately 203.9% from approximately HK$10.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately HK$31.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The net profit margin
increased by approximately 4.9% from approximately from
2.6% to 7.5% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018
respectively.

The Group has recorded a profit of approximately HK$31.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 as compared to the
profit of approximately HK$10.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The increase was mainly attributable to:

(i) share of profits of an associate, contributed by the
acquisition of 30% of the issued shares of Dakin Holdings
Inc. of approximately HK$5.0 million (2017: Nil);

(i) new revenue sources from the money lending and the
PRC property management businesses of approximately
HK$1.6 million (2017: Nil) and HK$9.5 million (2017: Nil)
respectively;

(i) increase in revenue from the effect of increase in the
statutory minimum wage in Hong Kong to HK$34.5 per hour
effective from 1 May 2017 which led to the increase in the
property management services contracts sum;

(iv) the net effect of decrease in legal and professional fee,
increase in interest on promissory notes and amortisation of
intangible assets during the year; and

(v) fair value gain on an investment property and interest
income and fair value gain on investments at fair value
through profit or loss during the year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2018 were approximately HK$50.0 million (2017:
HK$52.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately 3.8%
compared to the corresponding period in 2017. This was mainly
attributable to the decrease in bonus, Directors’ emoluments,
rental fee incurred during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s other operating expenses remain stable for the year
ended 31 March 2018 were approximately HK$18.1 million
(2017: HK$18.0 million), representing a slightly increase of
approximately 0.9% compared to the corresponding period in

2017.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

HEEmx

HE2018F3A31IBILFE  AEEMH
HELRATRIFTET -
(20174 : 1,8008 8 T) » #8201 74 [ HARE
HAN#10.9% °

N R/1,810&E T

MBERRERERE

For the year ended/
as at 31 March

BE3A318LLEE
M3IA31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Financial position BRI
Current assets MENEE 174,636 114,185
Current liabilities mENEE 76,078 74,595
Net current assets mENEEFE 98,558 39,590
Total assets BERE 272,458 203,395
Bank borrowings, finance lease payables RITEE  BANRMERERER
and promissory notes payables e AL R R 17,769 21,831
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NI 54,165 45,165
Total equity EmAEER 196,076 116,270
Key ratios FEE
Return on equity (1) A& A Bl R (1) 19.8 10.0%
Return on assets (2) BERREQ2) 13.0 5.9%
Current ratio (3) e (3) 2.30times % 1.53 times &
Gearing ratio (4) BEEBBEHE@G) 9.1% 18.8%
Net Debt to equity ratio (5) BEFHEEESEEEG) 0% 0%
Debtors turnover day (6) FEUS AR 3K B 88 B 2(6) 43.3days B  41.2 days H
Creditors turnover day (7) FEfTRRFKEE BE(7) 26.0days H  25.0days H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

Notes:

1. Return on equity is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average
total equity.

2. Return on assets is calculated as the profit for the year divided by average

total assets.
3. Current ratio is calculated as the current assets divided by current liabilities.

4. Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt represents bank borrowings, promissory
notes payable and finance lease payables.

b. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and bank
balances and divided by total equity. For the avoidance of doubt, total debt
represents bank borrowings, promissory notes payables and finance lease
payables.

6. Debtors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade receivables divided by
revenue times number of days in the period.

7. Creditors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade payables divided by
cost of services times number of days in the period.

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 March
2018 with bank balances and cash of approximately HK$54.2
million (2017: HK$45.2 million).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank borrowings,
promissory notes payable and obligations under finance lease of
approximately HK$17.8 million (2017: HK$21.8 million).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$98.6 million (2017: HK$39.6 million). The
Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operations, available cash, bank balances,
promissory notes payable and bank borrowings.

RETURN ON EQUITY

The return on equity increased from approximately 10.0% for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately 19.8% for the year
ended 31 March 2018, mainly due to the increase in profit for the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

RETURN ON ASSETS

The return on assets was increased from approximately 5.9% for
the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately 13.0% for the
year ended 31 March 2018, mainly due to the increase in profit
for the year.

CURRENT RATIO

The Group’s current ratio increase from approximately 1.53 times
as at 31 March 2017 to approximately 2.30 times as at 31 March
2018 mainly due to the acquisition of convertible note during the
year and increase in cash and cash equivalents which enlarged
the Company’s assets.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total debt (i.e. bank
borrowings, promissory notes payables and finance lease
payables) divided by total equity, as at 31 March 2018 is
approximately 9.1% (2017: 18.8%). The total secured bank
borrowings increase from approximately HK$9.4 million as at 31
March 2017 to approximately HK$9.9 million as at 31 March
2018. In addition, the Group issued promissory notes with
carrying value of approximately HK$7.7 million as at 31 March
2018. On the other hand, the Group’s total equity increased
significantly during the year ended 31 March 2018 due to
issuance of shares upon placing of shares as well as earnings for
the year during the year.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio was 0% as at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2018 which indicates that the Group’s has
sufficient cash and bank balances for debts repayment.

DEBTORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The debtors’ turnover day increase from approximately 41.2 days
for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately 43.3 days for
the year ended 31 March 2018 due to increase on collecting time
on trade debtors.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

BELHREK

BEOREREHZE2017F3A31HILFEL
59% FAE#HE2018F3A31HIEEEFEL
13.0% * TERRFEREFIEA -

B L=

NEE 7 R EH2017F3A31H#AI1.53
& ZE2018%3 A31 HA92.30f% » FEmM
FAWRBABRBRZEBEARIBS KRG EE
Y INBHAEBEERAFTHN

EERBHR

20183 A31H » AEENEEBEL R
(TEHEBEBERITEE ENEALE
BREMMERERE) BAERLARE) D
59.1% (20174 : 18.8%) - KR ITE
B4 M2017F3 31 HA)9408 /8 L1 N
F2018F3 A31HAIQ0E B TT © o » B
2018F3A31H ' AEEBBITRAELN A
T70BB AL EE - S—HHE » AEE
B RS ERENE 20183 A31 R IEFEE KX
RGN FBRANF AR ERMIFEIT
I M R B FIFTER -

SEFEEERLR

AEBMEEFEHERLLEN2017F3 A
313 %2018 3A31B 9 B A0% » FERA
ESEERRRE MIRITESREEGES

FE Ui B B 8 B

FEUBRF S H 8 A= 2017F3A31H 1t
FEHA2BIEEHE2018F3A31HIEF
[E#143.38 - LT AR EE 5 FEUER A IR
FREFFEHE DNFTER o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CREDITORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The creditors’ turnover day was slightly increased by 1 day from
approximately 25.0 days for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
approximately 26.0 days for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Such increase was due to the fully utilisation of credit period
offered by some of the creditors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

OPERATION REVIEW
Outlook

The property market in Hong Kong is expanding. Public opinion
voices concern over the housing stock production and the
speeding up of the completion of construction of properties in the
near future is expected to solve the heavy demand on housing.
It is envisaged that the property management business will
expand simultaneously. On the other hand, even though strong
competition and soaring cost resulting from statutory minimum
wage revision and inflation are unavoidable, the Directors are
confident that the Group is now on an appropriate stage to increase
its market share after the listing of the Company’s shares on the
GEM and believe that the Group will benefit from the listing.

During the year, the Group has extended its property
management services to the PRC market and recorded an
additional revenue of approximately HK$9.5 million (2017: Nil)
from this segment. In addition, the Group also recorded loan
interest income from its money lending business of approximately
HK$1.6 million and interest income from investment at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$1.7 million (2017: Nil).
Looking forward, the provision of property management services
in Hong Kong and the PRC will continue to be the core business
of the Group while management will continue to explore other
investment opportunities in order to increase the Group’s income
source and will therefore be in the interest of the Company and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Human resources

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 1,965 employees
(as at 31 March 2017: 2,162 employees). The Group’s staff costs
for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$331.1 million (2017: HK$338.6 million). To ensure that the
Group is able to attract and retain staff capable of attaining the
best performance levels, remuneration packages are reviewed
on a regular basis. In addition, discretionary bonus is offered
to eligible employees by reference to the Group’s results and
individual performance.

Services contracts

Due to well-established team and project planning, during the
year ended 31 March 2018, 17 property management contracts
were awarded to the Group.

As at 31 March 2018, there were in total 434 service contracts
(covering around 74,000 households) comprising 402 property
management service contracts, 15 stand-alone security service
contracts and 17 facility management service contracts.

Contract renewal complying with procedural requirements

A service contract which does not comply with the procedural
requirements for contract renewal as stipulated in section 20A of
the Building Management Ordinance (Chapter 344 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) may be cancelled by the owners’ corporation.
Included in 434 contracts in force as at 31 March 2018, 137
service contracts are not in strict compliance with the said
contract renewal requirements, hence, termination notices were
served on clients involving in these contracts. All of the remaining
297 valid contracts as at 31 March 2018 are in compliance
with the said procedural requirements or not applicable under
the Building Management Ordinance. Senior management
adopts a tight control system to monitor the full compliance of
the procedural requirements. All newly signed contracts during
the year ended 31 March 2018 included the mandatory term
requiring the client to follow the said procedural requirements, if
applicable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Client accounts

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held 61 (2017: 61) client
accounts amounting to approximately HK$43.7 million (2017:
HK$40.8 million) on trust for and on behalf of customers. These
client accounts are opened in the names of the Group and the
relevant properties. The management fees received from the
tenants or owners of the properties were deposited into these
client accounts and the expenditure of these customers was paid
from these client accounts.

Performance bond

As at 31 March 2018, the banks issued 8 (2017: 10) bond
certificates amounting to approximately HK$15.7 million (2017:
HK$20.4 million) on behalf of the Group to the clients as required
in the service contracts.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately HK$0.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$10.4 million).

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at
31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

Contingent liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
the Group’s deposits placed for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign currency
fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains pegged to the
US$. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Acaquisition of a Financial Services Company

On 20 January 2017, the Company, as potential purchaser,
entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(the “MOU") with a potential vendor (the “Potential Vendor”).
Pursuant to the MOU, the Company intends to acquire, and the
Potential Vendor intends to dispose of, the entire issued share
capital in a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability (“Target Group”) which, together with its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Target Group”) is currently licensed
to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). The Target
Group also holds a money lender’s licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“MLQO"). In addition, the Target Group has recently submitted an
application to the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong for approval of the addition of Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Acaquisition of a Financial Services Company (continueq)

On 13 February 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(as purchaser) and the Company (as guarantor) entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Chang Tin Duk, Victor
(“Mr. Chang”) (as vendor), pursuant to which the aforesaid
purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Mr. Chang
has conditionally agreed to sell, 30% of the issued share capital
of the Target Company at a consideration of HK$31,500,000.

On 28 April 2017, all the conditions precedent set out in the
Agreement have been fulfilled and the aforesaid completion
took place on 28 April 2017 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Agreement.

Following the aforesaid completion, the Company is holding
30% of the equity interest in the Target Company and the Target
Company has become an associate of the Company, and the
investment of the Group in the Target Group is classified as
investment in an associate.

Details of the acquisition are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 January 2017, 13 February 2017 and
28 April 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Acaquisition of the Convertible Notes

On 14 July 2017, Oceanic Alliance Investments Limited (the
“Seller”), and Lucky Stone Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Buyer”), entered into an
agreement in relation to the acquisition of convertible notes of
HK$36,000,000 (the “CN Agreement”).

Subiject to the satisfaction (or waiver) of the conditions precedent
as set out in the CN Agreement, the Buyer conditionally agrees
to acquire the convertible notes from the Seller at a total
consideration of HK$36,000,000 (equivalent to AUD6,000,000,
using an agreed exchange rate of AUD1=HK$6 and being the
face value of the aggregate principal amount of the convertible
notes) (the “CN Acquisition”). The convertible notes for the
principal amount of AUD6,000,000 with a maturity date on 1
March 2019 are issued by ASF Group Limited (the “Issuer”), a
public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in Australia, with its issued shares being listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange Limited (CAN 008 624 691), and are unsecured
and not listed on any stock exchange. Further, the Buyer agrees
to pay to the Seller an accrued interest of the convertible notes
from 1 April 2017 and up to the completion date specified under
the Agreement (both date inclusive) to be calculated at an interest
rate of 10% per annum in accordance with terms of a deed of
convertible note entered into between the Seller and the Issuer.

Completion of the CN Acquisition

On 12 October 2017, all conditions precedent under the CN
Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion in relation to
the CN Acquisition took place.

The convertible notes for the principal amount of AUD6,000,000
(equivalent to HK$36,000,000) with a maturity date on 1 March
2019 are issued by the Issuer and are unsecured and not listed
on any stock exchange.

Details of above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 14 July 2017 and 13 October 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Conditional Mandatory Cash Offers

On 4 January 2018, the Company and Heng Sheng Capital
Limited (“Offeror”) jointly announced that immediately prior
to the share purchases on the market by the Offeror totalling
257,504,000 shares (the “Share(s)”) of the Company (including
the Additional Share Purchases (as defined hereinafter)),
representing approximately 30.11% of the entire share capital of
the Company as at the date of the relevant joint announcement
(the “Share Purchases”), the Offeror and parties acting in concert
with it were not interested in any Shares. Immediately prior to
the share purchases on the market by the Offeror of 15,000,000
Shares on 29 December 2017, representing approximately 1.76%
of the entire share capital of the Company as at the date of the
relevant joint announcement (the “Additional Share Purchases”),
the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it were interested
in 242,504,000 Shares, representing approximately 28.35% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the relevant joint announcement. Immediately following the
Share Purchases (including the Additional Share Purchases), the
Offeror and parties acting in concert with it own an aggregate of
257,504,000 Shares, representing approximately 30.11% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
relevant joint announcement.

The Offeror is required to make the conditional mandatory cash
offers (the “Offers”) for all the issued Shares (other than those
already owned or to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting
in concert with it) pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code
and to cancel all the outstanding share options granted under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 19 September
2013 pursuant to Rule 13.5 of the Takeovers Code.

Kingston Securities Limited, for and on behalf of the Offeror and
in compliance with the Takeovers Code, made the Offers on the
terms set out in the composite document dated 24 January 2018
(the “Composite Document”).

BEEFNWR DM

REmEA)

BEAFRE  FREWEBAR - BELT
REELENBEARBRHEUARERR
EREREENRRE B (F)

BRHEFMEREEEY

201841848 @ ARalhEAELRA
BARI([EHHDBAEM BEENH
R I5 8 B 4 £ 257,504,000 A% 48 A &) i
BN D(BEEMNHEE(EERET
) AEAR R R MBS A H B2 IR
K4I30.11% ([RMDEE D)AT » ELHF K
H—BTE8 AT W ENERRG RS
o BEBLHAMN2017F1I2 A29B A5
8% 5 15,000,000 f% A% 17 (15 A& 2 A1 5 A8 78
Bta A B HEIIRAL1.76% ([ BEIMNE
PEEE A EHRFRE—BITBALTR
242,504,000 fx P HEB = - (5 AR
BRI S A HE 2B BT AL
28.35% - BEEMRMEBE (BIEEIINRMDE
B)E BEHOAME—BRITHALHEEESHE
257,504,000 8z 17 + 152 R]R B S
N HEZEE TR AN4930.11% ©

2R ERBYWETRIRRI26. 152 B E 3%
TP (BOTRE-BITHALEHB X
# T UREE RN R h B R IR B R & 2
#(T2H) ) RARR YR ST RIFR I3 SRE A
N AEIR201349 A 19 B ER i s B AT 8178
TR 2 AR AR TR B AR

SHREELARRARREN T RERIK
<A IRBEEA20I8FLA24R 2446
XA (T8RAXF D FE G IR R B A -

Annual Report 2017/18
2017/18F

25



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Conditional Mandatory Cash Offers (continued)

On 5 January 2018, the Board announced that the independent
board committee of the Board (the “Independent Board
Committee”), comprising all the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard, has been established for the
purpose of making a recommendation to the shareholders of the
Company other than the Offeror and parties acting in concert
with it and the holders of the Share Options in respect of the
Offers and, in particular, as to whether the terms of the Offers
are fair and reasonable and as to acceptance of the Offers. The
recommendation of the Independent Board Committee was
included in the Composite Document.

With the approval of the Independent Board Committee pursuant
to Rule 2.1 of the Takeovers Code, the Company has appointed
Euto Capital Partners Limited as an independent financial adviser
to advise the Independent Board Committee in respect of the
Offers and, in particular, as to whether the terms of the Offers
are fair and reasonable and as to the acceptance of the Offers.
Euto Capital Partners Limited is a licensed corporation under the
SFO to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities under the SFO. The letter of advice from Euto Capital
Partners Limited in respect of the Offers was included in the
Composite Document despatched jointly by the Company and the
Offeror.

The Composite Document in relation to the Offers were
despatched on 24 January 2018.

Details of above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 4 January 2018 and 5 January 2018 and Composite
Document dated 24 January 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset
(continued)

Close, Results and Settlement of the Offers and Public Float
of the Shares

On 22 February 2018, the Offeror and the Company jointly
announced that the Offers were closed at 4:00 p.m. and were not
revised or extended by the Offeror.

As at 4:00 p.m. (being the latest time for acceptance of the Offers)
on the Closing Date (as defined in the Composite Document), the
Offeror had received (i) 20 valid acceptances in respect of a total
of 362,255,950 Offer Shares under the Share Offer, representing
approximately 42.35% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the joint announcement; and (ii) valid
acceptances in respect of aggregate of 20,000,000 Share Options
under the Option Offer (as defined in the Composite Document),
representing 100% of the then outstanding Share Options (as
defined in the Composite Document).

Remittances in respect of the cash consideration (after deducting
the seller’'s ad valorem stamp duty in respect of the acceptances
of the Share Offer) payable for the Offer Shares tendered under
the Share Offer have been posted to the Independent Shareholders
who have already accepted the Share Offer (to the address
specified in the Form of Share Offer Acceptance) by ordinary
post at their own risk as soon as possible, but in any event within
seven (7) Business Days following the date of receipt by the
Registrar of the duly completed Form of Share Offer Acceptance
and all the relevant documents of title necessary to render the
acceptance under the Share Offer and the date on which the
Offers became unconditional. Remittances in respect of the cash
consideration payable for the Share Options tendered under the
Option Offer have been posted to the Optionholders who have
already accepted the Option Offer (to the address specified in the
Form of Option Offer Acceptance) by ordinary post within seven
(7) Business Days following the date on which the Offers became
unconditional.

Immediately after the close of the Offers, subject to the due
registration by the Registrar of the transfer of those Offer Shares
acquired under the Share Offer to the Offeror, 235,591,565
Shares, representing approximately 27.54% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the joint
announcement, are held by the public (as defined under the
GEM Listing Rules). Accordingly, as at the date of the joint
announcement, the Company continues to satisfy the minimum
public float requirement as set out under Rule 11.23(7) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Details of above is set out in the Company’s announcement dated
22 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Compensation from All Profit

On 21 June 2015, the Company, Capital Creation (BVI) Limited
and All Profit Alliance Limited (“All Profit”) entered into a
subscription and shareholders’ agreement (the “Subscription
and Shareholders’ Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
subscribed 10% of the issued share capital of All Profit at the
subscription price of HK$13 million.

Under the Subscription and Shareholders’ Agreement, All Profit
guaranteed to the Company that the net profit of All Profit after
tax (the “2016 After-Tax Profit”) for the period from 20 March
2015 (date of incorporation of All Profit) to 30 June 2016 (the
“Initial Guarantee Period”) shall not be less than HK$10 million
(the “Guaranteed Profit Amount”). If the 2016 After-Tax Profit of
All Profit falls below the Guaranteed Profit Amount, All Profit shall
allot and issue to the Company such number of new All Profit
Shares representing 10% of the then issued share capital of All
Profit enlarged by the allotment and issue of such new All Profit
Shares and the Guaranteed Profit Amount shall be extended
for a further 12 months to the year ended 30 June 2017 (the
“Extended Guarantee Period”) in the same guaranteed amount
(the “Extended Profit Guarantee”). If the net profit of All Profit
after tax for the year ended 30 June 2017 (the “2017 After-Tax
Profit”) is less than that Extended Profit Guarantee, All Profit shall
compensate the Company for the shortfall (the “Compensation”)
calculated as follows:

The difference between the 2017 After-Tax Profit and the
Extended Profit Guarantee X 13 X 20%

For the avoidance of doubt, if the 2017 After-Tax Profit is zero or
a negative amount, the formula (HK$10,000,000 X 13 X 20%)
will be adopted in calculating the amount of the Compensation.
Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall have the right to
request All Profit to issue and allot to the Company such number
of additional new All Profit Shares representing 5% of the then
issued share capital of All Profit as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of such new shares of All Profit (“All Profit Shares”) in lieu
of the Compensation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Compensation from All Profit (continued)

As advised by All Profit, based on the audited financial statements
of All Profit for the year ended 30 June 2017, it recorded an
audited net loss of approximately HK$7.3 million for the year
ended 30 June 2017 and approximately HK$3.9 million for the
period from 20 March 2015 (date of incorporation) to 30 June
2016, respectively. Accordingly, the profit guarantee for both the
Initial Guarantee Period and the Extended Guarantee Period are
not met. The aforesaid audited financial statements of All Profit
for the year ended 30 June 2017 were issued in late 2017.

Pursuant to the Subscription and Shareholders Agreement, the
Company has demanded (i) the additional All Profit Shares,
representing 10% of the then issued share capital of All Profit,
to be allotted and issued to the Company as a result of All Profit
failing to meet the profit guarantee for the Initial Guarantee Period
such that the Company will be interested in approximately 20% of
the issued share capital in All Profit; and (ii) the Compensation of
HK$26 million calculated based on the abovementioned formula
(i.,e. HK$10,000,000 x 13 X 20%) from All Profit as a result
of All Profit failing to meet the profit guarantee for the Extended
Guarantee Period. All Profit has confirmed to the Company
that allotment and issue of the additional All Profit Shares was
completed on 26 January 2018 and the Compensation will be
fully settled on or before 31 December 2018.

Details of above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 May 2015, 22 June 2015, 3 July 2015 and 30 January
2018.

Major Shareholders

Heng Sheng Capital Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 August 2011 with
limited liability and is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Liming. Mr. Huang is the sole director of Heng Sheng Capital
Limited.

As at 31 March 2018, Heng Sheng Capital Limited owns an
aggregate of 619,911,950 shares of the Company, representing
72.47% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, changes
in the Directors’ information since the disclosure made in the
Company’s annual report 2016-2017 or the announcement in
relation to the appointment of director (as the case may be) are
set out as follows:

— Mr. Eric Todd, an executive Director of the Company,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Boill
Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai
Shun Holdings Limited) with effect from 14 August 2017 (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 1246);

— Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Chinney Investments, Limited with
effect from 3 November 2017 (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 216);

— Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of OCI International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Dragonite International Limited) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 329) since May 2017; and

— Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, was appointed as (i) an independent non-
executive director of Kin Shing Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1630) since May 2017; and (ii) a company secretary
of Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited (formerly known
as Highlight China loT International Limited) (stock code:
1682) since November 2017 and chief executive officer
since September 2017. The securities of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Change of Address of Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1
September 2017, the address of head office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company has been changed to
Unit 1001, 10 Floor, Chung Nam House, 59 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong with effect from 1 September 2017.

Charges over assets of the Group

As at 31 March 2018, certain bank deposits of approximately
HK$10.2 million (2017: HK$7.1 million) and the deposits placed
for life insurance policies of approximately HK$8.4 million (2017:
HK$8.2 million) were pledged to a bank to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Besides, the Group had certain
motor vehicles acquired under finance lease. The carrying values
of motor vehicles under finance lease amounted to approximately
HK$0.3 million and HK$0.4 million as at 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017 respectively.

The deposits placed for life insurance policies are denominated
in United States dollars, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS
BEEEFNWR DM

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Fund raising activities

In order to meet the needs of business development, the Group
successfully completed a number of equity fund raising activities
during the past twelve months immediately preceding 31 March
2018, as detailed below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Fund raising activities (continued)
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Actual use of proceeds as at
the date of this report
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capital of the Group.
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Approximately HK$18 million was
utilized as partial payment for an
acquisition of the CN of principal
amount of AUD6 million and
approximately HK$2 million has
been used as working capital of
the Group.
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RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

The Group faces intense competition which may adversely affect
its market share and profitability. The property management
industry in Hong Kong is competitive and the competition may
exert some pressure on the service fees of property management
companies. The Group may therefore be required to reduce its
fees or maintain low service fees in view of the market pressure so
as to retain customers or pursue new business opportunities. The
Group’s revenue stream and profitability may also be adversely
affected if the customers terminate the services contracts with
the Group, whether by serving written notice or for the reason of
breach or material breach of the terms or conditions thereunder,
prior to the expiry date.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Eric Todd (“Mr. Todd”) has been appointed as the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director with effect from 1 August
2016. Mr. Todd has resigned from the position as the Chairman
of the Board and remains as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 6 March 2018.

Mr. Todd, aged 56, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
business administration from Boston University in the United
States. He was a certified public accountant in the State of
California, the United States from September 1989 to January
2010. Mr. Todd started his career at the Hong Kong office of
KPMG (formerly known as KPMG Peat Marwick) from 1985 to
1990 and subsequently joined the Standard Chartered Bank
Group and worked from 1991 to 1995. Prior to joining the
Company, he had been employed as a business consultant and
also served as finance director for several companies engaged in
the media industry.

Mr. Todd is currently an executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 404) and a non-executive director
of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089). The
securities of the these companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Todd was an independent non-executive director of Boil
Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1246) from July 2016 to August
2017, whose securities are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi (“Mr. Ho"”), aged 58, is an executive Director of
the Company. He is responsible for business operation, finance
management and sales and marketing. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor’s degree of science from the Memorial
University of Newfoundland, Canada.

Mr. Ho is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, member of the
Group’s senior management. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member
of the Group’s senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho’s
cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho is not connected with any
other Directors, member of the senior management, Substantial
Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix (“Mr. Lee”) has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 20 December
2016.

Mr. Lee, aged 33, holds a Bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Washington State University in the United
States of America. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the
real estate investments, acquisition, valuation and assets
management. Prior to his appointment as an executive Director,
Mr. Lee had been a business consultant of the Company since 1
May 2016.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Liming (“Mr. Huang”) has been appointed as a non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board with effect from
6 March 2018.

Mr. Huang, aged 42, is an entrepreneur with 16 years of
experience in property development and property management
business in the PRC. He is currently the chairman of Heng Sheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd, a company that is principally engaged in
property development and residential property management
business in the PRC.

Mr. Huang, the ultimate beneficial owner of Heng Sheng Capital
Limited (“Heng Sheng”), which is the controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Huang, through Heng Sheng, is interested in
619,911,950 share of the Company (the “Shares”) (representing
approximately 72.47% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of this report).

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (“Mr. Tso”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of each of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
and the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Tso, aged 35, graduated from the Cambridge University with
a bachelor’'s and a master’s degrees in Land Economy, majoring
in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the founder
of the Foresea Capital Group Limited (“FCG”) since 2013 and
the China Mini Storage Limited (“CMS”) since 2014. Prior to
establishing FCG and CMS, based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked
as an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China Real
Estate Fund from 2008 to 2012, a joint venture offshore real
estate fund sponsored by the China Everbright Limited (stock
code: 165) and the Ashmore Group PLC (London Stock Exchange
stock code: ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also
worked at Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial Real Estate team
from 2006 to 2007, and where he was principally involved in the
firm’s principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He also
worked at the HSBC'’s Global Capital Markets — ABS & Structured
Bonds Team from 2005 to 2006, and where he was principally
involved in the bank’s securitisation business. As for public
services, Mr. Tso has been invited to become the 10th and 11th
session member of the Beijing Youth Federation (HKSAR), the
3rd and 4th session member of the Beijing Overseas Friendship
Association (HKSAR) and the Beijing Group Convener of China
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (“CRECC") Hong Kong
Chapter. Also, he has been appointed as a part-time lecturer for
the Asia-Pacific Commercial Real Estate Academy (“APCREA™),
an educational institution sponsored by the CRECC’s China
Commercial Real Estate Commission. He has been appointed
as responsible officer of Acer King Capital Hong Kong Limited, a
company licensed to carry on Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO,
since September 2017.

Mr. Tso is currently an independent non-executive director of
OCI International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Dragonite
International Limited) (stock code: 329), whose securities are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (“Mr. Lam”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, chairman of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Lam, aged 48, is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor
degree in accounting from the Xiamen University in July 1990
and a master degree in business administration from the Oxford
Brookes University in the United Kingdom in July 2010. Mr. Lam
is a licensed person for type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

Mr. Lam is currently a chief executive officer and company
secretary of an independent non-executive director of Hua
Long Jin Kong Company Limited (“Hua Long Jin”) (formerly
known as Highlight China loT International Limited) (stock code:
1682), an independent non-executive director of Holly Futures
Co., Ltd (stock code: 3678), Kin Shing Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1630), Starrise Media Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Silverman Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1616) Sunway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58). The securities
of these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lam is also the independent non-executive
director of Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8018) whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Hua Long
Jin from August 2014 to May 2017 and a non-executive director
of Blockchain Group Company Limited (stock code: 364) from
December 2014 to May 2015. The securities of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was also an independent non-executive director of Baytacare
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 8197) from August 2008
to June 2015 whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director, a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo, aged 50, has over 27 years of experience in the
investment and real estate industry. He is currently the chief
executive officer of Fulldiamond Limited, an investment and
consulting company specializing in real estate, finance, securities,
project and fundraising.

Mr. Lo is the vice president and chairman of commercial liaison of
The Hong Kong Real Property Federation. He is also a committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference —
Jiangxi.

Mr. Lo obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
the University of California, Los Angeles in the United States,
Master of Business Administration (Investment and Finance)
degree from Hull University in the United Kingdom and an
executive program certificate from Stanford University in the
United States.

Mr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chinney Investments, Limited (stock code: 216) whose securities
are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, aged 65, one of the founders of the Group.
He was appointed as a director of Kong Shum Union Property
Management Company Limited (The “KSU”) since August 1984.
He had been appointed as an Executive Director from 15 August
2012 to February 2015 and was responsible for the Group’s
overall business development.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
Executive Director. Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the Group’s
senior management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung’s
cousin. Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is not connected
with any other Directors or member of senior management,
Substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau Ping Kwai (“Mr. Lau”), aged 67, is an associate director
of KSU (note). He has been working in KSU for more than
seventeen years. He joined KSU as a property management
officer in September 1996 and was promoted to this position in
April 2008. He is responsible for supervising property managers
and advising on the improvement of the Group’s overall standard.
He is also responsible for marketing in the private sector.

Mr. Lau obtained a Certificate in Housing Practice at the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of The University of
Hong Kong (“HKUSPACE") in August 2000 and was awarded
a Diploma in Housing Management by the same institute in
September 2002. He was elected a corporate member of the
Chartered Institute of Housing (“CIH”) in October 2002 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing in November
2002. In April 2003, he registered as a Professional Housing
Manager at the Housing Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing
Rules. An associate director named herein is principally responsible for
(i) the supervision of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii)
supervision of the Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the
Group’s customer relations.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of the cousin of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung,
a director of KSU, and Mr. Ho, an executive Director. Save as
disclosed, Mr. Lau is not connected with any other Directors,
member of the senior management, Substantial Shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Fong Shek Hung “(Mr. Fong”), aged 59, is an associate
director of KSU (note). He is mainly responsible for supervision of
property management, customer relations and administration.

Mr. Fong worked for the Hong Kong Government from 1978 to
2001. He joined the Housing Department in October 1987 and
was promoted to the position of housing officer in October 1989.
He resigned in August 2001 and subsequently served as property
manager in Synergis Management Services Limited. He was the
district general manager before he left the company in February
2011 and joined KSU in May 2011 as senior property manager.
He was promoted to the position of associate director of KSU (note)
in February 2012.

Mr. Fong has awarded a Diploma in Housing Management by
HKUSPACE in September 1997. He was elected as a corporate
member of the CIH in June 1999 and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Housing in June 2001. In May 2001, he
registered as a Professional Housing Manager at the Housing
Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing
Rules. An associate director named herein is principally responsible for
(i) the supervision of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii)
supervision of the Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the
Group’s customer relations.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lai Chun Ho (“Mr. Lai”), aged 46, is senior property manager
of KSU. He has already worked in KSU more than ten years.
He is mainly assigned to supervise the general operation of the
buildings in New Territories.

From December 1990 to February 1995, Mr. Lai worked in JLW
Management Limited. For the period from June 1997 to May
2006, he worked in Urban Property Management Limited. He
joined KSU as assistant property manager in August 2006.

He was awarded a Certification in Estate Management of Hong
Kong Management Association in 1992, and was awarded a
Diploma in Property Management of City University of Hong Kong
in 2002.

Mr. Chan Ka Kit Kanly (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, is a senior
accounting manager of KSU. He has been working in KSU for
about 14 years and was promoted to the current position in
April 2018. He is responsible for management of accounting
department and financial management of the clients.

Mr. Chan was appointed as the head of accounting department
of the New Impact Printing Company Limited in 2002. He was
responsible for financial management of mainland and Hong
Kong. Since August 2004, he joined KSU and was responsibilities
for financial management of comparative estates. He hereafter
promoted to the position of senior accounting manager.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
upholding high standards of corporate governance. The Board
considers that enhanced public accountability and corporate
governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding
the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
The principles adopted by the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. The Company engaged a third-party professional
firm to conduct an internal control review for the year ended 31
March 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
complied with all CG Code except for the following deviation:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive should be clearly established
and set out in writing.

The Company did not officially have a chief executive officer
since 8 September 2015. Daily operation and management
of the Company is monitored by the executive Directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that
although there is no chief executive officer of the Company, the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of
the Board, which comprises experienced individuals who meet
from time to time to discuss issues affecting the operations of
the Company. The Board believes that the present arrangement
is adequate to ensure an effective management and control of
the Company’s business operations. The Board will continue to
review the effectiveness of the Company’s structure as business
continues to grow and develop in order to assess whether any
changes, including the appointment of a chief executive officer, is
necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions in securities
of the Company. The Company also had made specific enquiry
of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 11
October 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with
policies. The composition and diversity policies of the Board are
reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure that its
changes in composition will not result in any undue interference.
The Board members should possess appropriate professionalism,
experience and trustworthiness in performing duties and
functions. The Board would diversify its members according
to the Company’s situations and needs. While participating in
nomination and recommendation of director candidates during
the year, each member of the Board may consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience
in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review
the policy concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose
the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report, including any quantitative targets and standards and its
progress with policy implementation.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Board had
reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the Board
composition and diversity policy appropriate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group to the Management. The delegated
functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. The Board gives
clear directions to the management as to the matters that must
be approved by the Board before discussions are made on behalf
of the Group by the Management. All the Directors carry out their
duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, including 3 executive
Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Eric Todd
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Liming (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 6 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
Director has sufficient experience, knowledge and execution
ability to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively
and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board set up a Nomination Committee to
recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
Directors.

All executive Directors, namely, Mr. Eric Todd, Mr. Ho Ying Choi
and Mr. Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix, have respectively entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 1 to 3 years
unless terminated by not less than 1 to 3 months’ notice in writing
served by either part on the other. Executive Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

The non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Huang Liming has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of one year. Non-executive Director is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the
Articles.

All the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Kai Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard and Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan,
have respectively entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 3 years unless terminated by not less than
2 months’ notice in writing served by either part on the other. The
independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the
Articles.

At each following AGM, one-third of the Directors are required
to retire from office. Each Director shall retire from office once
every 3 years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and those who have
been longest in office since their last election or re-election. New
Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and
may submit themselves for re-election at the AGM immediately
following their appointments.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors were
independent during the year.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the members of the Board.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chairman, the executive Directors
and senior management (the “Management”). The delegated
functions and assignments are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include
considering and making decisions on implementing the Group’s
policy and strategies as set by the Board; strategic planning of
different business and functions; closely monitoring operational
and financial results in accordance with plans and budgets;
putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and managing the Group’s day to day business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board fulfilled the requirement of appointing at least three
independent non-executive Directors and they represented
at least one-third of the Board as stipulated by the GEM
Listing Rules. It met requirement of having at least one of
the Independent Non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independent non-executive Directors
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification to
carry out their duties so as to fully represent the interests of the
shareholders of the Company.
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TEERRE
BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND ESE238  REASKRBSER
PROCEDURES
Directors’ attendance record of Board, Committee and General & Z2018F3A31HILFE  EFHFEE
Meetings during the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: 2 ZESRRERG ZRHET -
Meetings attended/eligible to attend
bE/AEREREE
Annual ~ Extraordinary

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination General General
Directors: Notes Board  Committee ~ Committee  Committee Meeting Meeting
Ex. (i EZe #pZET §MZEe REZEE RRBEAS HARRAE
Executive Directors: YES:
Eric Todd ERE 1 2122 nla nla nla n 1n
Ho Ying Choi fr 2222 nla 44 33 n n
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix ZRE 22122 n/a na n/a n n
Non-executive Director: FYTES:
Huang Liming EHH 2 22 n/a n/a n/a n/a 11
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:

Directors:

Ts0 Siu Lun, Alan B%iy 17/22 55 444 33 n "
Lam Kai Yeung R 21/22 55 44 33 11 11
Lo Chi Ho, Richard EEx 21122 45 44 33 1n n
Notes: Biat -

1 Mr. Eric Todd resigned as the chairman of the Board and remains as an 1 ERIZEAAEB2018F3A6HERTESS =
executive Director with effect from 6 March 2018. & B ARTITES -

2 Mr. Huang Liming was appointed as the chairman of the Board and a non- 2 HRASLAEB2018FIAHREZTAESS
executive Director with effect from 6 March 2018. FRERIFITES ©
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES (continued)

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in
advance. Notice of at least fourteen days is given for a regular
Board meeting. For other Board and committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together with
all appropriate, complete and reliable information are dispatched
to all Directors at least three days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review
the related documents and be adequately prepared for the
meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to all Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are
opened for Director’s inspection.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities of
the Group.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code during the year ended 31 March
2018, that all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EERESEXRRTE(E)
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year RIESEFRE 228 - EFHNEE2018
ended 31 March 2018 according to the records provided by the #F3831H ItFEFTZES Z BB MM T

Directors as follows:

Reading newspapers,

to obtain update Reading materials
Attending seminars, relating to economy, relevant to
conferences or accounting, rules, directors’ duties
forums  law or regulation, etc. and responsibilities
MEEE  BERE- MEREEN
BMHAE - et K- ER BRERELEH
Directors: EE: eRTmE RERERNER Pt
Executive Directors: TES:
Fric Todd ERT v/ v/ v/
Ho Ying Choi fol Rt v/ v/ v/
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix FEE v v v
Non-executive Director: FBiTES:
Huang Liming =R
(appointed with effect (B2018F6 A6HEZRIT)
from 6 June 2018) v v/ v/
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV FHTES :
Ts0 Siu Lun, Alan L v/ / 4
Lam Kai Yeung MR v/ / 4
Lo Chi Ho, Richard BEx v/ / v/
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference, available on
the Company’s website, in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee is currently composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
(chairman), Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 and reviewed the Company’s audited annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the unaudited quarterly
and interim results during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The function of the Audit Committee includes the following:
(i) Relationship with the Company’s auditors:

(@) to be primarily responsible for make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging and
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(i)

(iii)

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the

Review of the Company’s financial information:

(@) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and/or quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

— any changes in accounting policies and practices;

— major judgmental areas;

— significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

— the going concern assumptions and any

qualifications;

— compliance with accounting standards; and

— compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures:

(a) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems.

year and recommended approval to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference,
available on the Company’s website, in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee is currently
composed of 1 executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Ying Choi
and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Kai Yeung (chairman), Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan and Mr. Lo Chi Ho,
Richard.

During the year under review, 4 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee’s principal duties are the
determination of specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess
the performance of Executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Group.

Remuneration of Directors

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Directors’ fees and all other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors during the year are set out on an individual and
named basis in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Remuneration of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

FMEEE(E)

SREEENTH
RIEDZEEATAISFAIE X EB.1.51E » &
F2018F3A3IBILFE o EREZH
[ R N

Number of individual

In the band of EiE AE
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 2
Over HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T A £ 2

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference, available on the
Company’s website, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. At
the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consists
of 4 members, of which the majority are Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan (chairman),
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard and an Executive
Director, namely, Mr. Ho Ying Choi.

During the year under review, 3 meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on selection of individuals nominated for directorships of
the Company; assessing the independence of Independent
Non- executive Directors; reviewing and recommending the
appointment of new Directors; identifying the competences
required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities; and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy established for implementing
diversity on the Board periodically.
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company set up a compliance committee (the “Compliance
Committee”) which is a committee under the Company’s Audit
Committee and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an Executive
Director, and comprises Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, the associate director
(note) of the Company, Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the associate
director (note) of the Company. The Group’s legal adviser, Y.C.
Lee, Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, is procured to provide legal
advices and to attend the committee meeting on a needed basis.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, 11 meetings were held and
the Group’s legal adviser had participated in 2 meetings. The
minutes of the meetings were distributed to the Group’s legal
adviser, Y.C. Lee, Pang, Kwok & Ip Solicitors, and the Audit
Committee members for scrutiny and comment. The Compliance
Committee addresses the matters concerning the compliance
of law and regulations, contract terms and litigation cases of the
Group.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a “director”
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate director
named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision of property
management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s
administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration for audit
and non-audit services are summarized below:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure that the
internal control measures are in place to safeguard the Group’s
assets and to comply with relevant regulations and best practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control and
mitigate these risks. The Management of the Company reviews
all significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (“Mr. Sheung”),
representative of Miracle Corporate Services Limited, as its
company secretary. His primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Eric Todd, an executive Director.

In compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr.
Sheung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).
EGM shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in
respect of the Company in writing to our Head Office at Unit
1001, 10 Floor, Chung Nam House, 59 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there is no significant change
in its constitutional documents.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on
ethics and integrity and increasing the Shareholders value as a
whole.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of Heng Sheng Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance and its financial position
are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year end 31 March 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are set out on
pages 91 to 182.

The state of affairs of the Company is set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on page 183 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 and a review of its future development is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
in this annual report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

AN ANALYSIS USING FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out under the paragraphs headed
“Financial Review” in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to
identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to
its operational activities in order to minimise these impacts if
possible. The Group aims to maximise energy conservation in
its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting
green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade
equipment such as lighting and air-conditioning systems in
order to increase overall operating efficiency. To identify energy
efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and records the
energy consumption intensity from time to time. Information on
the environmental policies and performance of the Company is
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 72 to 83 of this Annual Report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

The Board believes effective communication and accurate
and timely information disclosure builds the Shareholders’ and
investors’ confidence, and also facilities the flow of constructive
feedback and ideas that are beneficial for investor relations and
future corporate development. For details, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 43.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of
the Group.

SHARES ISSUED FOR THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued for the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Details of the fund raising activities of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the paragraphs under “Fund raising
activities” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 95 and in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2018,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, amounted
to HK$101,637,541 (2017: HK$63,328,102) including
share premium of HK$145,805,565, accumulated losses of
HK$35,040,025, option reserve of HK$3,872,000, contributed
surplus of HK$4,750,108 and equity investment revaluation
deficit of HK$13,000,000.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share options

Details of movements the share options of the Company during
the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Eric Todd
Mr. Ho Ying Choi
Mr. Lee Chin Ching Cyrix

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Liming (appointed with effect from 6 March 2018)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun, Alan
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard

Mr. Eric Todd (“Mr. Todd”) had resigned as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 6 March 2018 due to change of work
positions. Mr. Todd confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board and there are no matter relating to his resignation
which need to be brought the attention of the Shareholders of the
Company.

In accordance with article 84 the Articles, one-third of the
Directors will retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM. Accordingly, Mr Eric Todd, Mr.
Lam Kai Yeung and Mr. Lo Chi Ho, Richard shall hold office until
the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In accordance with the article 83 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Huang Liming will retire from office and being
eligible, he will offer himself for re-election in the forthcoming
AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 34 to 42 of
the annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, a permitted indemnity
provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force
and was in force throughout the financial year. The Company
has purchased the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed
for an initial term of three year commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to
year until terminated by two month’s notice in writing served by
either party on the other party.

The non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year
commencing from the date of his appointment. Such appointment
can be terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by
either party on the other party.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACTS

Save for the respective director service contracts with each of the
executive Directors, no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company'’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party in which a Director of the Company and the Director’s
connected party had a material interest whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group as well as the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of the Company’s Remuneration Committee are set out in the
corporate governance report on page 53 of the annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the employees of the Group is determined
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, total contributions paid or payable to the
MPF scheme by the Group amounted to approximately HK$9.0
million (2017: HK$9.5 million) which had been recognized
as expenses and included in staff costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions in
securities of the Company. The Company also had made specific
enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEENERSTHRAERAKQARSE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, {i#fzER% - HEARO RES
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES HEZRAE

OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION

At 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the #2018F3A31H ' EF R EHBE A A
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares or 2 7] & E ¥ E B BIA% D ~ BB D K (E
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as 5™ - A EA LR AR BIEEEAS K
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to  HA & (& FI E3521§1F B E B MA - SiRE
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company GEM F TR BIE5.461& B1TBA AR A &
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing B FTEUREZS MOA BN T ¢

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the RAATRHEARCOIBITZ2EEBERZFE

Company
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity and interests in the
Name of Director nature of interest Number of shares  issued share capital
HEBRITREZ
E=£1 B kESRME R EE RS
Huang Liming (note 1) Interested in controlled corporation 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
=R (A1) Ry L EER (note 2)
(Hfat2)
Notes: et -

1. Mr. Huang is interested in the said shares through his wholly owned 1. EEEBBHEZERFREEERAARAFN L

company, Heng Sheng Capital Limited. AR D R s o
2. The Letter “L” denotes long position in the shares 2. FHRILIRFRERHOTE

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their FREXFTREESN - R2018F3A31H - &
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, F&EBEALHER AR B HETME
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its ~ EORBEEA - HEARMD RERETESE
associated corporations as at 31 March 2018. EfTERAR ©
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2018 was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons/entities (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed
or taken to have interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of interests and short positions of substantial shareholders (the
“Register of Substantial Shareholders”) required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

interests in

the issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity and nature of interest  Number of shares share capital

HERITREZ

RRER SR RERME RHOBE ERBOEILE

Heng Sheng Capital Limited (note 1) Beneficial Owner 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(note 2)

BEBARBRAR(HE]) EmBEAA 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(K1:E2)

Huang Liming (note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(note 2)

=B (K1) YA E s 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(K1522)

Li Mengya (note 1) Interest of spouse 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(note 2)

TR [T e 619,911,950 (L) 72.47%
(Btzt2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1 Heng Sheng Capital Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands whose entire issued share capital is owned by Mr. Huang Liming,
and accordingly under the SFO, Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Heng Sheng Capital Limited. Ms. Li Mengya is the
spouse of Mr. Huang Liming and, accordingly under the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Huang
Liming is interested.

2 The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any persons/entities (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who/which had or were deemed
or taken to have any other interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the Register
of Substantial Shareholders required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statement. The total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme is
40,000,000 shares, which represented approximately 4.68% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

So far as the Directors and chief executive are aware, no non-
exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions were entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2018 is contained in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. The related party transactions disclosed in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements are connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions that were fully exempt from
reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval
and/or annual review pursuant to Rules 14A.76(1), 14A.90 and
14A.95 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the applicable disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of such connected transactions.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the year are as follows:
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Purchases

and cleaning

Revenue subcontracting

Wi RERERER

HK$ HK$

BIT BT

The largest customer BRAEF 13,742,215 N/AZ 3 A
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAEET 55,364,722 N/AZ i3 A
The largest supplier BAMER N/AZN3E 6,664,199
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAHERESR N/AZN3E 14,458,156

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate percentage
of purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is
approximately 92.6% of the total purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
42.7%.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is
approximately 13.4% of the total sales of the Group and the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
3.3%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling Shareholders or Directors and their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
is interested in any business apart from the business operated
by the Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued share as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
the annual report.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Special resolutions were passed by the Shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 7 May 2018, to approve
the change of the name of the Company, the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands approved the registration of
the new names of the Company and issued the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name on 8 May 2018. The conditions
for the Change of Company Name have therefore been satisfied
and the English name of the Company has been changed from
“Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited” to
“Heng Sheng Holdings Limited” and the dual foreign name of the
Company in Chinese has been changed from “/& /7Bt & ¥ EE R
(ZERR)BR AR to “BAZERERRAR]", both with effect from 8
May 2018. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong on 29 May 2018 confirming the
registration of the new names of the Company in Hong Kong
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) with effect from 29 May 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages
43 to 58 of the annual report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Eric Todd
Executive Director

Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRES

REPORTING PERIOD

As a company that bases and serves in Hong Kong, Heng Sheng
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited) (the “Company”), is fully
committed to environment protection, socially responsible and
equipped with the strictest corporate governance. In pursuant
to the requirement of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting guide (“Environmental, Social and Governance
Guide”) in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) from the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, we have prepared the 2017-2018 Environmental
Social and Governance Report (thereafter “ESG Report”),
covering business segments that includes financial management,
property management services (including cleaning, repair
and maintenance), property security service and household
€-commerce Services.

The scope of this report will cover the Company’s initiatives on
introducing the concept of ESG to our employees and clients,
putting them into practices to our daily operations and disclosing
results as a year-end summary over this reporting period. It is also
the intention of our management to provide an overview of our
Company'’s direction in managing ESG related issues, driving for
ESG initiatives throughout the Company, and communicating our
ESG performance result with our stakeholders.

BOUNDARY AND REPORTING PERIOD

The reporting boundary shall cover our operation activities
throughout the Company as listed above, and the reporting period
of this report shall cover the date from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018.

ENVIRONMENT

Generating revenue for our shareholders, while providing the
best service to our clients, and recognizing the importance and
contribution to the local environment and community have always
been one of our guiding principles. As part of our business
include property and estate management, it is important for
the Company to adopt the highest standard in environmental
protection, setting examples and showing that our Company cares
about the community and its development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENT (continued)

The Company took effort in identifying environmental impacts
attributable to its business activities and carefully managing our
operation in order to minimize these impacts if possible. The
intention is not only promoting environment protection internally,
but also encouraging the same to our clients and improve all
together.

Air emission

The Company took the initiative to examine the issue of air
emission across the operation, and the result indicated no
significant impact could be reported. Due to our business nature,
the Company did not involve with any combustion process,
industrial, or heavy transportation activities that could lead to
direct emission to the atmosphere. Thus, no significant impact
from air emission can be identified. We will continue monitoring
our operation and ensuring our air emission will be maintained
at this level, and will disclosure further information as changes
occur.

Carbon emission

Besides our effort in monitoring air pollutant emission, our
Company is closely assessing our carbon emission, and the
management is implementing measures to reduce our overall
carbon footprint. Our estimated carbon emission, as the
Company and for this reporting year, is calculated based on
electricity consumption (the most significant in-direct carbon
emitting source) and the emission factor provided by our
electricity providers. Figures on electricity consumption and
the carbon intensity factor were acquired from electricity bill
and the recently posted Sustainability Report from electricity
provider. With this information available to us, the Company looks
to further investigate and work with our employees, along with
external stakeholders, on enhancing our overall performance and
minimizing our carbon footprint.

As a summary, the Carbon Footprint for the Company in this
reporting year (1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018) was 210 tCO.e.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRES

ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Waste management

After careful investigation, the Company concluded that the
operation did not involve handling any hazardous waste, and thus
no significant impact was recorded.

For non-hazardous waste, the Company had been promoting
waste reduction internally, and adopted the same principle
while working with our partners and communities that we
served. Our attentions are especially spent on paper, metal and
plastic recycling, which worked in parallel with the promotional
campaign of the government. Appropriate use of recycled-
paper was encouraged in our workplaces, and our employees
are reminded to dispose waste in respective collection bins. In
addition, the Company adopted a paper-less working procedure,
that encouraged the communication through emails and e-format
documents instead of hard copies. The effort was well received
and was supported by our staff.

As a result, and with the collective efforts with our employees, our
recorded waste generation in this reporting period was estimated
to be 10L of container in daily operation waste.

Use of resources

As an environmental friendly company, the Company promotes
the “Smart Usage” culture, encouraging our employees the
cautious use of Natural Resources, particularly on electricity,
operational materials, and water consumption.

The Company adopts Environmental Policy on energy
conservation and efficiency, while implementing green
practices and green technologies as much as possible in all of
our premises. Our lighting and air-conditioning systems were
upgraded with the aims for further energy reduction, and our
operation team took energy consumption record in an attempt to
identify energy efficiency opportunities.

In addition, the concept of “Smart Usage” had been incorporated
in different parts of our business and was proposed as different
actionable plans. Plans were designed according to estimated
demand and supply, cost effectiveness, energy saving, equipment
and was used as promotional strategies to attract potential
carpark clients. As a result, proposed plans were either discussed
or already implemented with our potential clients, and would be
carried out in phases.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Environment and resources

As discussed, resource management is considered as an
important aspect in the Company’s operation, especially in
managing buildings and properties.

The Company understands energy generation requires fossil
fuel burning, which can leads to a significant impact to the
environment as air pollution problem. Thus, the Company
reminds employees to be cautious about our electricity
consumption to minimize our impacts.

The Company worked with our staff by promoting the “Smart
Usage” culture, and reminded them to take-action throughout
their daily operation. For example, notices were posted around
different office area, reminding our staff on turning off lights and
photocopiers after use. Staff were also reminded to maintain
a good practice on utilizing other electronics devices, such as
creating a comfortable working environment by setting the air-
conditioner to 25.5°C, or printing documents double-sided
whenever it was appropriate.

Working in line with the “Smart Usage” direction, our Company
actively promoted the concept of smart usage of electricity in all
premises. Initiatives such as adopting to an Energy Conservation
and Efficiency Policy and practices in offices and utilizing green
technologies, were successfully implemented throughout the
year. Heavy energy consuming devices were regularly checked
and upgraded, as necessary (i.e. lighting and air conditioning), to
ensure they were operating at their level of optimum.

As a summary, and after a careful data consolidation and
analysis, the Company consumed the followings natural resources

this reporting period:

Summary — 2017 Kong Shum environmental data
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Electricity Consumption (kWh) FEEE(TERE) 330,900
Water Consumption (m?) FREGLFK) 600
Non-hazardous Waste (L) mERZEY() 10
Electricity Consumption Intensity (KWh/ft2) FERE(TERFEAIR) 19.31
Water Consumption Intensity (m3/ft2) FKEE(TEEFAR) 0.04
Petroleum (L) A (F) 12,840
Diesel (L) gl () 77
Paper Consumption (kg) HaRERE(RT) 704,800

Table 1. Use of Resources as of 31 March, 2018
K1 Bl 220183 H31 HEIE)FEH
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RE - HERERRES

SOCIAL

The Company’s business spreads across several industry sectors,
and involves a large number of great individuals working with
us. Offering competitive compensation to our staff, while treating
them equally and fairly, and complying to laws and regulations
have always been one of the Company’s guiding principles.
The Company will monitor and improve in areas as needed,
and continue to grow sustainably and in a socially responsible
manner.

Employment

Employees are our internal stakeholders and are pivotal to our
success. As a socially responsible company, our Company
understands success hinders largely on the People that works
with us. The Company thus recognizes the contribution from
our People and the success that they bring, and considers
them as the greatest asset. The Company believes works of
excellence must be well compensated, and offers a competitive
remuneration and benefits scheme to retain and attract qualified
employees. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted regularly based
on performance appraisals, and according to the guideline
from the remuneration and incentive system. At the end of the
term, rewards that are based on the Reward and Punishment
Measures, will be handed to those who made significant
contributions in daily work. Outstanding employees are given
priority on potential promotion or improvement opportunity during
annual employee appraisals.

Emolument policy

The emolument of the employees of the Company is determined
by the remuneration Committee, and will be assessed according
to merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of
the Directors of the Company are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Remuneration committee

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Company established a Remuneration Committee, and with
the principal duties in determination of specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
also consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities, and include
those factors into the decision process.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet regularly determining on
policies for Directors’ remuneration, and assess the performance
of Executive Directors and certain senior management of the
Company.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Company operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company, and under the control of independent trustees.
Both the Company and the employees contribute a fixed
percentage to the MPF Scheme based on monthly salary in
accordance with government regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, total contributions paid
or payable to the MPF scheme by the Company amounted to
approximately HK$9.00 million (approximately HK$9.5 million in
the previous year), which had been recognized as expenses and
included in staff costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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RE - HERERRES

SOCIAL (continued)

Operation health and safety

The Company considers the topic of operational health and safety
as one of the top priorities, and enforced the highest standard
on maintaining a safe and comfortable working environment for
employees.

The Company provides employees with a spacious working place
and with abundant ancillary resources, including a dining room,
resting area, and basic household appliances. All equipment,
such as drinking facilities, air-conditioning system and wiring are
under regular inspection. Equipment such as fire extinguishers,
fire escape masks and safety helmets at construction sites
were placed in prominent locations in offices, and were easily
accessible to all employees. In addition, safety guidance such as
fire drills or tips were constantly circulated to remind our staff to
pay attention to public safety.

In summary, the following measures were adopted during the
reporting period to strengthen our staff's awareness on Health
and Safety issues:

° A one-time health and safety training was conducted for
new employees to strengthen their overall health and safety
awareness;

° A work safety and health meeting were held monthly to fulfil
employees’ daily health and first-aid needs; and

° Regular workshop was conducted on enhancing our security
staff knowledge on emergency incident management (ie:
gas leak, riot and etc).

During the reporting period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018, the Company had no material non-compliance breach
with relevant standards, rules and regulations, and no any major
accident were encountered during operation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

Equal opportunities, workforce diversity and
anti- discrimination

The Company has a policy in place to cover employee
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

A comprehensive staff handbook was issued and available to all
employees that included:

e employment policy;

° welfare and benefits;

° leave and rest days;

° conduct and discipline;

° occupational health and safety;
e personal data (Privacy); and

° equal opportunity.

A copy of this Employee Handbook was given upon the first day of
joining our Company, and updates should be revised accordingly.

The Company emphasizes on equal opportunity, as our
employment and training and promotion practices do not
discriminate on grounds of gender, disability, pregnancy, family
status, race, color, religion, age, sexual orientation, national origin,
trade union membership or other conditions recognized in law.

Our Corporate Policy includes provisions on any kind of
discrimination or harassment will not be tolerated either in job
duty assignment or career advancement and victimization in the
workplace. In addition, the Company collected applicant ID cards,
QAS certificates and security personnel permits, according to
the Security and Guarding Services Ordinance (Chapter 460), in
order to verify the identity and qualification of our security guard
applicant.

To the Company’s best knowledge, and during the year ended
31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRES

SOCIAL (continued)
Development and training

To encourage career development, the Company provided
different training programs, including training programmes for
security guards on working attitude and security knowledge.
Our management and staff were also provided with real-
life case study to enhance their management skills and risk
management knowledge. In addition, effect and updates on new
law, complaints, and new company policy in operations and
accounting were regularly debriefed for consistency throughout
the operation.

In summary, the total hours of our provided training programme
according to genders can be found as below:

& (&)
RERIE

RBEBERER  ARARRHESZEEIR
B BREARTABREEEITIERER
REMBZEINRE - HAITHERE KR
BTRETERMINIR - NIERHEEER
BE N BB IR AN o LEAN - IRATE RAIE %R
RERGFTTEOFOEN - B LA
BRI N BB - WERETERER -

RIS - WP HAIFIIRIZ AR 2R
MERIE ST -

Total
(Number of Total
Male Female  staff trained) (Hours)
Hat
(ZINE et
B z TAED (7NEF)
Management and BREEREBET 119 149 268 1404
General Staff
Security Guard REAEB 1285 386 1,671 10,026

Table 2. Employee total training hours (as of 31 March 2018)
Ftho B TH#8052 (B 22018F3H31H)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

Development and training (continued)

We values talent and employs that best fit at the position disregard
of their genders. Public recruitment will be conducted annually
and equal opportunity. The following charts thus provides an
overview of our staff’'s age and gender distribution in this reporting
period:
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Chart 1. Management and general staff
age distribution (as of 31 March 2018)
Bl EEEREEE TFES
(BLZ2018F3A31H)

(as of 31 March 2018)

(Et2201843H31H)

At the year ended in 31 March 2018, the majority of our staff
were employed under a full-time arrangement, where the turnover
rate of Management and General Staff of our operations in Hong
Kong was 6% (15.6 person average per month).

Chart 2. Security Guard gender distribution
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Chart 3. Management and General staff
gender distribution (as of 31 March 2018)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRES

SOCIAL (continued)

Employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders

The Company values relationship with our customers and
suppliers, and treats it as an important aspect of our business. An
open engagement channel with our customers was maintained
through complaint revision meetings, as it brings insight to
our operation performance. It was proven to be effective in
understanding the latest updates and to better our services. The
Company is also dedicated to build a close working relationship
with our suppliers, and by conducting regular performance
revision and appraisal for a closer working relationship with our
clients. Our effective communication strategy includes timely and
accurate information disclosure. Not only it brought confident
to our Shareholders’ and investors’, which were beneficial
for investor relations, it also invited constructive feedback for
perfecting our operation.

We will continue the success of our open communication, and the
interactions will be sustained for a successful working relationship
with our stakeholders in the future.

Anti-corruption

The Company is strictly complying to all laws and regulations
requirements and is fully committed in restricting any of illegal
activities, including Corruption, without exception. The Company
requested our staff to understand, prohibit and work with us to
safeguard our Company throughout the daily operation, and also
prevented money laundering activities. A whistleblowing channel
was established for reporting inappropriate conduct and other
irregularities issues that were against our relevant policies and
guidelines. In order to strengthen our employee’s understanding
on the topic, regular internal trainings were organized, and real-
life cases and measures to avoid non-compliance activity that
may incur were provided as examples. A working guideline on
“Anti-Corruption Measures on Account, Security, Construction,
Property Management” was provided as a reference, and it was
publicly available and fully accessible to all our employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)

Anti-corruption (continued)

During the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018, our
Company was unware of any action that non-compliance to legal
regulation, and related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

COMMUNITY

The Company understands the importance of our business is
to both generate and bring in profit to our shareholders, and
being socially responsible to care, serve and give back to our
community wherever is needed at the same time.

Community investment

For the past ten years, our Company has been receiving the
recognition as a “Caring Company” under the Caring Company
Scheme by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS).
The Company, and together with our staff, are dedicated and
committed to fully support local charity organizations, NGOs and
their volunteering activities by allocating portion of our revenue to
build a better local community.

In addition, and to better support our local community, the
Company engaged and participated in the “Lions Territory-
wide Blood Donation Day 2017” (i F &3 & 0 8 I B 2017),
launched by Leo Club of Hong Kong and “New Year Thousand
Elderly Caring Feast 2018" (¥ &M ZR & L T AR E2018)
organized by Mount Davis Kaifong Welfare Association. The result
was well received, where participants expressed appreciation and
looked forward for future events from the organizers.

During this reporting period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018,
our Company contributed a total of HK$3,000 in supporting the
local charity in both the social and health area.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R E

;L

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HENG SHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Heng
Sheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to
182, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

U]

Investment property
Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group measured its investment property at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. This fair value measurement is significant to
our audit because the balance of investment property of
HK$32,000,000 as at 31 March 2018 and the fair value
gain of HK$3,182,699 for the year ended 31 March 2018
are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s fair value measurement involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and
estimates.

“Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.”

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment property is supported by the available evidence.
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(i) Trade receivables

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade receivables of HK$50,221,847
as at 31 March 2018 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves

application of judgement and is based on estimates.

“Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit

limits and credit periods to customers;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction

history with the customers;
— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
— Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

— Checking subsequent settlements from the customers;

and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.”

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade

receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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(iii)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Investment at fair value through profit or loss
Refer to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment at fair value through
profit or loss with the changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. This fair value measurement is
significant to our audit because the balance of investment
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$37,793,793 as at
31 March 2018 and the fair value gain of HK$1,347,877
for the year then ended are material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value
measurement involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

“Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.”

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment at fair value through profit or loss is supported by
the available evidence.

(iii)
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(iv)

Investment in an associate
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of investment in an associate
for impairment. This investment in an associate is
significant to our audit because the balance of investment
in an associate of HK$36,499,071 as at 31 March 2018
is material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

“Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

— Assessing the financial information of the associate;

— Obtaining and checking to evidence to support the
Group’s impairment assessment;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins and discount
rates); and

— Checking input data to supporting evidence.”

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for investment
in an associate is supported by the available evidence.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

(iv) R—EBENTNRE

IRMER A I TSR MAIFED5 -

EEAHR —HEBEARNKRERN
/UME\/%E SEIER— F’ﬁﬁﬁ%%’&?ﬁ’\]&
BHEZMEBEKN  BAAEN—EH
ENEIHERER2018F3 A31 BRI 4
#4 /36,499,071 T + HER & B TR
KMEBEKN -t BEEERR
BRI & e B BT R ENZTHRR
KAzt o

[BEENETREFRE(HhER)

— FHE EEEARIER

— FMEEE QR ZMEER

— HEkigt SEERENEZ
feig

— HEEREBEFE 2 EEER
M

— FHEFERX(2REUEEER
K FEERRBEIEER) Z2A58
(N

— HRIXERE WBE@WAH

B — = 2 B
TIA R SR B &



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

“A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-
andregulations/standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.*

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ngan Hing Hon
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05294

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeEakEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

2018 2017
201845 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Revenue Y= 7 412,270,727 395,513,512
Cost of services BRFE A AN (317,871,870) (312,205,562)
Gross profit EF| 94,398,857 83,307,950
Other revenue E bz 8 8,384,170 338,310
Share of profits of an associate o — A E A Ea A 4,999,071 -
Administrative expenses TR (49,982,733) (51,957,774)
Other operating expenses HEfb2iERY (18,144,129) (17,984,352)
Finance costs BB AR 10 (1,328,746) (195,855)
Profit hefore tax BRBL AR 38,326,490 13,508,279
Income tax expense FriSEiFA > 13 (7,363,534) (3,320,101)
Profit for the year FEREF 11 30,962,956 10,188,178
Other comprehensive income/ Hib2mkzs, (85i8)
(loss), net of tax ($BRBIIE)
Items that will not be reclassified to PN —=2) s ey eyl
profit or oss: HEH :
Loss on equity investment BARERT AHAM 2 EIEEHY
at fair value through other IR E R E 8
comprehensive income - (4,267,000)
Items that may be reclassified AIREEF P R E BB -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation ~— HEGINERFIES 2
of foreign operation bE H ZRE 173,260 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FrHEMEZERE (EHE)
for the year 173,260 (4,267,000)
Total comprehensive income FREZEBREE
for the year 31,136,216 5,921,178
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

2018 2017
201845 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5B BEEMFEREF :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE Z =N 28,694,621 10,188,178
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A A 2,268,335 -
30,962,956 10,188,178
Total comprehensive income THEBEELEER
for the year attributable to: EHUREHEEE .
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZS DN 28,815,903 5,921,178
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 2,320,313 -
31,136,216 5,921,178
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK$) ERGETT) 14 0.037 0.018
Diluted (HK$) e (ET) 14 0.037 0.018

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI R

As at 31 March 2018 20184331 H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - WE MEE 17 11,763,803 12,654,309
Investment property B 18 32,000,000 28,817,301
Intangible assets B EE 19 5,838,386 7,886,735
Goodwill GRS 21 784,704 784,704
Deposits placed for life insurance MASRBREFTANZS
policies 22 8,382,078 8,169,842
Deposits for acquisition of an associate U 38 — & A R KR & 23 - 28,350,000
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 24 2,553,540 2,547,327
Investment in an associate R—EEERFNEE 25 36,499,071 -
97,821,582 89,210,218
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M ERGRIE 26 72,501,637 61,914,124
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIER 27 10,176,374 7,105,972
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 28 54,164,638 45,164,990
Investment at fair value through BASETAEBRAIRE
profit or loss 29 37,793,793 -
174,636,442 114,185,086
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables BN EM NI 30 54,553,501 64,006,351
Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE — B 31 9,869,600 9,370,264
Finance leases payables N mERERE 32 140,288 219,346
Promissory notes payables AN 33 1,674,841 -
Current tax liabilities BIEAFRIE & & 3,839,536 999,259
76,077,766 74,595,220
Net current assets REBEEFE 98,558,676 39,589,866
Total assets less current liahilities HWEERRBEE 196,380,258 128,800,084
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

As at 31 March 2018 201843531 H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
Kiat BT BT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Promissory notes payables FEf A H R 1E 33 - 12,157,882
Finance leases payables FENTRVE M E5KIE 32 83,847 83,805
Deferred tax liabilities FRIERIEEE 24 220,318 288,108
304,165 12,529,795
NET ASSETS EEFE 196,076,093 116,270,289
Equity R
Share capital R 7R 34 8,553,515 5,941,515
Reserves f#fE 36 184,200,002 110,328,774
Equity attributable to owners of the RNARIER AELER
Company 192,753,517 116,270,289
Non-controlling interests I I b A 3,322,576 -
TOTAL EQUITY A 196,076,093 116,270,289

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 182 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22
June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Eric Todd
EiRE
Director

EF

94 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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At 1 April 2016
Placing of shares (note 34)

Total comprehensive incomel(loss)
for the year

At 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2017
Placing of shares (note 34)
Capital injection by non-controling
interests of a subsidiary
Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 March 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RA1654R1R
RERM(HEH)

Enzmde/ (BR)EE

R017%3A31A

R17E4R1R
EERRD K231
R-RHBLRZ
gD A
FREENELE

H2018£3A31H

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRAEEAEL
Equity Foreign
Share Share investment currency Non-

Share premium option Merger  revaluation  translation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RRE  MWEE
Re  ROGEE BRERE  AHRE  EfEE i REEA & FERER  EREE

HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
iy BT o A iy BT AT A iy BT
4951515 74982817 3872000  4750,108  (8,733,000) - 851836 88341,7% - &83UL7%
990,000 21,017,315 - - - - - 22007315 - 22007315
- - - - (4.267,000) - 10188178 5921178 - b%LI78
5941515 96000132 3872000  4750,108  (13,000,000) - 18706534 116,270,289 - 116,270,289
5941515 96,000,132 3872000 4,750,108 (13,000,000) - 18706534 116,270,289 - 116,270,289
2,612,000 45,055,325 - - - - - 41,667,325 - 47667325
- - - - - - - - 1,002,263 1,002,263
- - - - - 121,282 28694621 28815903  2,320313 31,136,216
8953515 141055457 3872000  4750,108 (13,000000) 121,282 47,401,155 192753517 3322576 196,076,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\%iiﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&ZBfSBEERE
Profit before tax B A5 A1l ) 38,326,490 13,508,279
Adjustments for: BTG S IEEY I
Finance costs RE AN 1,328,746 195,855
Interest income F B (1,997,437) (303,310)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BE REEITE
equipment 1,465,127 1,163,297
Premium charged on life insurance ASRBREMBEEVRE
policies 86,877 80,414
Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE - BEREENDY S
plant and equipment (33,000) (5,000)
Amortisation of intangible assets | A E#E 2,048,349 717,512
Loss on early settlement of RP#EERNERB 2 BE
promissory notes 1,684,860 -
Share of profits of an associate oE—EEE A RNEN (4,999,071) -
Fair value gain on an investment property ~ —REIREWE A DEWE (3,182,699) -
Fair value gain on investment at fair value IR R REFT ABRHIRE
through profit or loss SO IEE (1,347,877) -
33,380,365 15,357,047
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e Y FR I8 & (10,570,674)  (6,347,003)
Change in trade and other payables g5 R EM e FRIEE (9,363,998) 5,598,148
Cash generated from operations KEEE 7R 13,445,693 14,608,192
Interest paid BAFE (254,997) (177,962)
Finance lease charges paid ENREHEER (10,854) (17,893)
Income tax paid B EH (4,597,262)  (3,777,303)
Net cash flows generated from operating KRETEFBRESRETH
activities 8,582,580 10,635,034

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEBHFBSELSHRE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB % - FiE L& (402,418)  (4,575,069)
Purchase of investment property BEREYZE - (11,277,372)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE MEFEFTEHRIE

plant and equipment 33,000 5,000
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE - (6,550,000)
Net cash outflow arising from business XBEHEENBRSRLFE

combination - (2,499,851)
Deposit for acquisition of an associate W i — e & A R IR & - (28,350,000)
Increase in pledged bank deposits EEFIRITFE I 0 (3,070,402) 489,999
Interest received AL 21,613 8,970
Investment in an associate R—FEEE AR E (3,150,000) -
Investment at fair value through profit or loss ZA AT AR ZIRE (16,000,000) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETHFTARESREFEHE (22,568,207) (52,748,323)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHBERERE
Repayment of bank loans BRIFITER (370,801)  (1,697,054)
Bank loans raised HIBIRITER 5,000,000 -
Proceeds from placing of shares B & /%10 TS 3KI8 49,160,000 22,770,000
Share issue expenses paid ERHEITHX (1,492,675) (762,685)
Repayment of promissory notes EEALER (26,000,000) -
Capital injection by non-controlling R—FEB AR Z

interests of a subsidiary IR E 1,002,263 -
Repayment of finance lease payables ERENMERENIE (251,219) (289,042)
Net cash flows generated from financing REETEHRBRENETHE

activities 27,047,568 20,021,219
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERBSEEWEM(RD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 13,061,941 (22,092,070)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEBTER BB s B 67,570 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR& MRS EHEY

year 41,035,127 63,127,197
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREASRREEEY 54,164,638 41,035,127
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH RE&ERBESZEY 2 L&D

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE & 54,164,638 45,164,990
Bank overdrafts IRITHEL - (4,129,863)

54,164,638 41,035,127
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (formerly
known as Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding)
Limited) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its
registered office is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Unit
1001,10 Floor, Chung Nam House, 59 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Board announced that the English name of the
Company has been changed from “Kong Shum Union
Property Management (Holding) Limited” to “Heng Sheng
Holdings Limited”, with effect from 8 May 2018.

Since February 2018, Heng Sheng Capital Limited (“Heng
Sheng”) became the new controlling shareholder of the
Company and the Company became a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Heng Sheng. For details of such change of
controlling shareholder, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 4 January 2018, 24 January 2018
and 22 February 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2017 and early
adopted HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” in last
year. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”); and Interpretations.

Other than HKFRS 9 (2014), the Group has not applied
other new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment property and investment at
fair value through profit or loss which are carried at its fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling interests and owners
of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. |dentifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition
are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated
in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

3. EAETBER(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #22018%F 3431 H I F/&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
()  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease term

Leasehold improvement 20%
Furniture and fixture 10%
Motor vehicles 30%
Office equipment 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property, and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leases

The Group as leasee

()

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance
lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at
the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position
as finance lease payable. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

The Group as lessor

()

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Intangible assets
Customer contracts

Customer contracts with finite useful lives that are
acquired through business combination are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years. The estimate useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Computer software

Computer software are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 4 years.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

0)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost;
— Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

— Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading
as at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the equity investment revaluation reserve. On
derecognition of an investment, the cumulative
gains or losses previously accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised
in profit or loss, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0

(k)

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Investments at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets are classified under this
category if they do not meet the conditions to be
measured at amortised cost and the conditions
of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is not
held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on
a financial instrument (other than trade receivables)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events
on that financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

()

(m)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(continued)

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or 10ss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the reporting period.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

(p) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

(g) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably.

(i)  Revenue from property management services
are recognised when services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Revenue from the provision of other supporting
services for the management of the property is

recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from the rental income is recognised on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest

method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Bonus plan

The expected bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plans are expected to be settled within 12 months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(v) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions)
of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group'’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

(t) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of

the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(ii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business in

different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

(v) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets except goodwill, investment property, deferred
tax assets and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value

of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(@

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recoghised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors
have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(i)  Fair value of investment property

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the investment property. In determining the
fair value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

(i) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference
to the present value of estimated future cash
flows. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected or there are unfavourable events and
change in facts and circumstance which result in
revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its intangible assets arising from
the Group’s development, which is included in
its consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2018 at HK$5,838,386 (2017:
HK$7,886,735). Detailed sensitivity analysis
has been carried out and the Group is confident
that the carrying amount of the assets will be
recovered in full, even if returns are reduced.
This situation will be closely monitored, and
adjustments made in future periods, if future
market activity indicates that such adjustments
are appropriate.

Impairment loss for trade and other
receivables

The Directors periodically review its receivables to
assess whether impairment exists. In determining
whether impairment should be provided, the
directors of the Company evaluated individually
each account for impairment after taking into
account the value of each client account’s
underlying collateral and the latest financial
position of those clients in default of settlement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

e B RRME

4. EESFHER AT FIRES

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION W EZRIR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) fEFFFEEMENEERR(E)

(vi) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

(vii) Fair values of investment at fair value through

profit or loss

The Group has significant amounts of investment
at fair value through profit or loss that are
classified as Level 2 fair value measurement
under HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
Group engaged independent competent valuers

to perform the valuation of investment.

As at 31 March 2018, the investment at fair
value through profit or loss that are classified as
Level 2. Fair value measurement under HKFRS
13 amounted to approximately HK$37,793,793.
Details of the fair value measurement are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements not necessarily represent amounts
which might ultimately be realized, since such
amounts depend on future circumstances and
cannot be reasonably determined until the

individual position is realized.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(viii) Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interests in an associate

Interest in an associate is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Value-in-use calculations
are used for assessing the recoverable amount of
these interests. These calculations require use of
judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required for assessing
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that
the related carrying value of interests may not
be recoverable; and (ii) whether the carrying
value of the interests can be supported by the
recoverable amount. Changing the estimations
used by management in assessing impairment
could materially affect the recoverable amount
used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s consolidated financial position and
consolidated results of operations. At the end
of the reporting period, the carrying value of
interests in an associate was HK$36,499,071
(2017:Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the
Group consist of debt which includes interest-bearing
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The Directors
review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of
this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the associated risks, and take appropriate actions to adjust
the Group’s capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior periods.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as the Group’s deposits placed for life insurance
policies are denominated in United States dollar
(“US$").

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$
remains pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2017.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at
fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings. These
deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group does not consider that it has any significant
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
from its bank deposits and borrowings as a reasonably
possible change of 50 basis points in the interest
rates would have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated profit or loss for the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to director’s approval. Receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
certain concentration of credit risk as 8.78% (2017:
15.8%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s five largest customers. Details of the
credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired were set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances and
pledged bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #22018%F 3431 H I F/&

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following information is used:

— internal credit rating;
— external credit rating (if available);

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

— significant changes in the value of the collateral
or in the quality of guarantees or credit
enhancements; and

— significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 180 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 365 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. H&EREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RBESEME
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REBEBUOR AT HEEB R NE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that HRREBEST K UERES
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its BrRWEeRHEE  UWEMNREE
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. MEBESHK o
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial RIREHR - ARREmEER
liabilities as at the end of reporting period, based on B H AR AR RA B H 5 4T e
the contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows: Nk
More than Total
1 year contractual
Less than but less than undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years cash flow amounts
BBIE EHRER
BEX HRME BOWSE  RERELE BEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2018 2018% AT BT BT B AT
Trade and other payables BAREMERTE - 54,553,501 - 54,553,501 54,553,501
Finance lease payables EfRERENE - 147,936 90,626 238,562 224,135
Promissory notes payable  [ERAXZE - 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 1,674,841
Bank borrowings - secured ~ RATEE-AEM 9,869,600 - - 9,869,600 9,869,600
9,869,600 62,701,437 90,626 72,661,663 12,322,011
More than Total
1 year contractual
Less than but less than undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years cash flow amounts
gk AORER
REX PRIE EIHoF  REeRELE FEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
2017 017% BT e B BT AT
Trade and other payables BHREMEMTE - 64,006,351 - 64,006,351 64,006,351
Finance lease payables EfRERENE - 226,611 84,695 311,306 303,151
Promissory notes payable  JEfTARZE - - 14,000,000 12,157,882 7,674,841
Bank borrowings - secured  RATEE-AEM 9,370,264 - - 9,370,264 9,370,264
9,370,264 64,232,962 14,084,695 87,687,921 85,837,648

1 28 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

Categories of financial instruments (e)

s EEEE(F)
SRITAER

At 31 December

M3A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: SHMEE .
Financial assets at amortised KA RN S RUE E
cost (including cash and cash (BREREEBESEEY)
equivalents)
— Deposits placed for life insurance ~ — Bt AFRBIRE
policies FARNE R 8,382,078 8,169,842
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 L E MW FIE 68,071,566 60,836,384
— Pledged bank deposits — B IRIRITIERK 10,176,374 7,105,972
— Cash and cash equivalents —-RENIREEFEY 54,164,638 45,164,990
Investment at fair value through BAREFABZNIRE
profit or loss
— Designated as such upon initial — R TR E
recognition 37,793,793 -
178,588,449 121,277,688
Financial liabilities: cEeE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  1ZESERR AT R © BB &
— Trade and other payables —E 5 LEMENFIE 54,553,501 64,006,351
— Promissory notes payable —EREHEE 7,674,841 12,157,882
— Bank borrowings — secured —iRITIEE —HEH 9,869,600 9,370,264
72,097,942  85534,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

Rk EE ()

(f)  Fair value (continued) H 2AREGE)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(i)  Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at () HR20184F3H31HHAAlE

31 March 2018: JERAIIEE -
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
FERAT
RREE : st
Level 2 2018
-t 1} 20184
HK$ HK$
Description it BT BT
Recurring fair value measurements: KEMQAAEE :
Investment at fair value through BT EGT A B a IR E
profit or loss
Convertible notes AR IR 37,793,793 37,793,793
Investment property KEY %
Commercial — Hong Kong EE-HE 32,000,000 32,000,000
Total recurring fair value KEERNE
measurements T2 69,793,793 69,793,793

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

R2017FE3H31 HAI 27218

March 2017: BRI FE -
Fair value
measurements
using: Total
FEA T3
NILEGFTE : BET
Level 2 2017
E-H 20174
HK$ HK$
Description it BT BT
Recurring fair value measurements: &EM D REE :
Investment property KEY %
Commercial — Hong Kong EE-FE 28,817,301 28,817,301
Total recurring fair value rEMARE
measurements =B 28,817,301 28.817,301

During the year, there was no asset transferred
out of any of the three levels of fair value

hierarchy.

FA AEEER=(ART

EEREEL -

Annual Report 2017/18

2017/185



132

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. H&EREE(E)
()  Fair value (continued) H 2AREGE)

(i) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (i) FEERAGEREFRGE
Group and valuation techniques and inputs B R A A E a8 TR
used in fair value measurements at 31 March: B ABIER3A3THZIHE -
The Group’s financial controller is responsible REB R TETH
for the fair value measurements of assets and FERMAMEEERBEARL
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, BFffE  ERBEEE=AAR
including level 3 fair value measurements. The AEFTE - WBREEER
financial controller reports directly to the Board EEgERZSEILAAER
of Directors for these fair value measurements. BoMBBEREEEEF
Discussions of valuation processes and results MHERFRERETED
are held between the financial controller and the TORET & o
Board of Directors at least four times a year.

The Group will normally engage external REB—RZBARITFHE
valuation experts with the recognised professional B N BR AL SR Y SNEB (B
qualifications and recent experience to perform BEGETHE -
the valuations.
Level 2 fair value measurements E_RAARETE
Fair value Fair value
DRE NRfE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Description Valuation technique Inputs HK$ HK$
it fhERM WARE BT BT
Investment property Market comparable  Price per square
Commercial — Hong Kong  approach metre
BRZE AELETISE BEIKRER
HE-FA 32,000,000 28,817,301
Investment at fair value Binomial option Share price/Discount
through profit or loss pricing model rate/Volatility
Convertible notes Conversion price
BRREFA Bz “IEABRETE RE/EEXS
RE-THRER B3 KIE, AR (E 37,793,793 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, properties investment and money
lending business during the year. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue recognised during the years is as follows:

g

AEERFRAETBUSRHEDEEE
R~ MEREMBEET - FAN
SEO D EREEATIT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision of property management REMEE IR R
services 409,577,174 395,513,512
Rental income from an investment "EMFEHES WA
property 1,100,860 -
Loan interest income from EEES 3TN ESR PN
money lending 1,592,693 -
412,270,727 395,513,512
OTHER REVENUE 8. Hibz=
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank interest income RITH B A 21,613 8,969
Interest income from investment at fair X AN EFT ABZRAEER
value through profit or loss FEWA 1,676,712 -
Interest income from deposits placed ~ FEASBRBRREFANIZEH
for life insurance policies ) BUTA 299,112 294,341
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HE W% « FE MR EHIKRES
equipment 33,000 5,000
Consultancy services income B8 AR TG A 1,733,157 30,000
Fair value gain on an investment —FAREMEN DD EREG
property 3,182,699 -
Fair value gain on investment at RASERTABZMRERN
fair value through profit or loss N ERE 1,347,877 -
Management services income EIRARFEUA 90,000 -
8,384,170 338,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@

Reportable segments

The Group has three (2017: two) reportable segments.
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different technology and marketing
strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

(i) Provision of property management services;
(i) Properties investment; and
(iii) Money lending business.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits or
losses do not include dividend income and gains or
losses from investments at fair value through profit
or loss. Segment assets do not include investments.
Segment non-current assets do not include deferred
tax assets and financial instruments.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

Business segments

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reportable segments (continued)

9. ZHEMRE)
(a) T2HH 2 (&)
() REZZ

For the year ended 31 March 2018

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

BZ201853A31AILFE
Provision
of property Money
management Properties lending
services investment business Total
Rt
EERE MERE BEX® @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Reportable segment revenue: A 27 2Pz
Revenue from external REIAREFH
customers Wk 409,577,174 1,100,860 1,592,693 412,270,727
Reportable segment profit A2HH SR 33,007,585 4,031,400 643,456 37,682,441
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BER
plant and equipment RiETE 1,142,803 5 - 1,142,808
Amortisation of intangible assets /& & # 2,048,349 - - 2,048,349
Income tax expense FBRRAX 7,127,985 129,363 106,186 7,363,534
Interest revenue FlEMas 320,725 - - 320,725
Interest expense FIEBRAY 1,221,628 - - 1,221,628
Additions to segment AENHIERBEE
non-current assets 569,481 - - 569,481
At 31 March 2018
1201853 A318
Provision
of property Money
management Properties lending
services investment husiness Total
REmE
BEER% MERE BEXE wact
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Reportable segment assets ERDLEE 144,909,202 32,664,740 3,742,626 181,316,568
Reportable segment liabiliies ~ FI2{HEHAE 70,698,027 204,400 - 70,902,427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Reportable segments (continued)

(i)  Business segments (continued)

9. ZHEMRE)
(a) T2HH 2 (&)

() REDBAE)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HZ2017F3R31RLLFE
Provision
of property
management Properties
services investment Total
b |
ERRS% MERE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Reportable segment revenue: BEE Geilhe
Revenue from external )KEM\E'%%)EE’J
customers Wezs 395,513,512 - 395,513,512
Reportable segment profit A 2HHEER 21,299,712 - 21,299,712
Depreciation of property, mE - BEK
plant and equipment RETE 1,156,573 - 1,156,573
Amortisation of intangible assets & & A 717512 - 717,512
Income tax expense FighiAx 3,320,101 - 3,320,101
Interest revenue MEdR 303,310 - 303,310
Interest expense MERY 195,847 - 195,847
Additions to segment ENHERBEE
non-current assets 806,686 9,512,507 10,319,193
At 31 March 2017
201743 A31H
Provision
of property
management Properties
Services investment Total
e
BEER% MERE Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Reportable segment assets A2RNHEE 114,236,708 29,074,278 143,310,986
Reportable segment liabilities BEE GRS 85,324,191 417,221 85,741,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

7 RPE R ()

(a) T2H D (&)

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9.

(@) Reportable segments (continued)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

(i) HE2#H7EFHI WK - EFE
BB - BERBEHNHEK -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
Year ended 31 March BZE3A3IHLEE BT BT
Revenue &
Reportable segment revenue and 7] 2R D Uk K
consolidated revenue el 412,270,727 395,513,512
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profits A 235 5% 7 37,682,441 21,299,712
Inter-segment (charges)/profits SEE(ER), w5 F (838,293) 409,375
Unallocated other income AOBEEAMIA 3,024,589 -
Share of profits of an associate Db —FEIEs R A g 4,999,071 -
Unallocated corporate expenses RO BL R (6,434,200)  (8,200,800)
Unallocated finance costs ROBERE AR (107,118) (8)
Consolidated profit before tax BB A AR E R 38,326,490 13,508,279
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
At 31 March M3H31H BT BT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AI2|HHEE 181,316,568 143,310,986
Unallocated cash and cash AOBIRE RIREFEY
equivalents 10,016,807 13,033,990
Other unallocated corporate Bt RO ECEEE
assets 81,124,649 47,050,328
Consolidated total assets EEERE 272,458,024 203,395,304
Liahilities =F
Reportable segment liabilities AE2®/HEEE 70,902,427 85,741,412
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEEE 5,479,504 1,383,603
Consolidated total liabilities raREesE 76,381,931 87,125,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9.

(b) Geographical information

DEBER(E)
(a) HEER

Revenue
Wz

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Hong Kong &5 402,772,752 395,513,512
PRC s 9,497,975 -
412,270,727 395,513,512

The Group’s non-current assets as at 31 March 2018

REBM20184F ;201743 A31

and 2017 are all located in Hong Kong.

(c) Information about major customers

ARSERBEEDMNES °
(c) ERXEEFHESR

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is set out in note 7
above. No customer accounted for 10 percent or more
of the total revenue for the years ended 31 March

2018 and 2017.

10% LA £ o

AR B R B 0 AT B B P EE
7 - B ZE2018%F [ 2017F3 A 31
AILEFE SEFPIGAKES

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @ERAR

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest expenses on: NTEENFERAX
— bank borrowings —RITEE 254,997 177,962
— promissory notes — 7 ER 1,062,895 -
Finance lease charges MEHEER 10,854 17,893
1,328,746 195,855

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

11. XABEEAELEFERRZF

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The Group’s profit for the year is arrived at after charging/ REBFNRFNTIENER, (FEA)T
(crediting): HIIER :
2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ BTIRA(BIEEEHH)
remuneration):
— Salaries, wages and allowances —¥He - TENER 322,060,873 329,102,653
— Retirement benefits scheme —IRRERNFT B
contributions 9,021,557 9,487,160
331,082,430 338,589,813
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ERRN BN & 640,000 540,000
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - WEREETE
equipment 1,465,127 1,163,297
Fair value gain on an investment property & ¥ MR B (3,182,699) -
Fair value gain on investment at BARER ABRNRERN
fair value through profit or loss N ERE (1,347,877) -
Amortisation of intangible assets W EEHE 2,048,349 717,512
Operating lease charges in respect of 7S EAELHER Y
— Premises e /JES 2,951,300 3,413,400
— Motor vehicles —)RE 592,000 568,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(@) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

(@)

ESNRERERASEHMH

For the year ended 31 March 2018

12. EERANVRESH A LHH

BZ2018F3/31ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Share-  Contributions
and other hased  to retirement
Fees henefits payments scheme Total
e 28 AR 7
we REMER IANZE BRAGHEHR Eh
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
frid B B B B B
Executive directors: HTEE !
Ho Ying Choi Bl - 2,208,000 - 18,000 2,226,000
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix FRIE - 540,000 - 18,000 558,000
Eric Todd BRI (i) - 600,000 - 18,000 618,000
Non-executive director: FHTES .
Huang Liming (Chairman) ERH(LE) (ii) 16,774 - - - 16,774
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Tso Siu Lun, Alan L 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lam Kai Yeung WER 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lo Chi Ho, Richard Btx 120,000 - - - 120,000
376,774 3,348,000 - 54,000 3,778,774

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EERANRESEH A T HH
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(@) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (@ EERSREEAEHM(E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HEN1743A31BLLEE
Salaries,
allowances Share- Contributions
and other based to retirement
Fees benefits payments scheme Total
1] AR (R
we  REMEN IRNRE REGEIMRT =
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: HTES:
Yan Chi Ming B 196,774 - - - 196,774
Ho Ying Choi fa By - 3903318 - 18000 3921318
Wu Yulin ROAB - 281,667 - 9,000 290,667
Lee Chin Ching, Cyrix ZRE - 152,419 - 5371 157,790
Eric Todd (Chairman) ERE(ZE) - 400,000 - 14,750 414,750
Huang He BB - 94,087 - 4121 98,208
Non-executive director: FHTEE.
Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR 95,484 - - - 95,484
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTEE :
Tso Siu Lun, Alan B2 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lam Kai Yeung R 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lo Chi Ho, Richard Btz 120,000 - - - 120,000
652258 4,831,491 - 51242 5534991
Notes: Bia -
(i) Resigned from the position of chairman on 6 March 2018. (i)  PA2018F3A6HBHIEFE B -
(i) Appointed on 6 March 2018 as an non-executive director and (i) M2018F3A6HEZE AR LA
the chairman of the Company. IEHITERFRESE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(&)
(b)

One (2017: one) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group was the director whose emolument is set out
in the above. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the
remaining four (2017: four) employees’ emoluments of

the Group were as follows:

12. EERANVRESH A LHH

RfumREH AL HMH

AEBRNAEMNSESHEALTEE—
#(2017F « —R%)EE - EF
BB SR £ - H{E20184F3
A31HIEFE @ 2 % (2017
F ) AEBEREENFHNO
T~

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Basic salaries and allowances HEA & MoERL 4,262,400 5,325,371

Discretionary bonus B 1514 296,400 873,428
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIET B

contributions 54,000 54,000

4,612,800 6,252,799

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BN T E

Number of individuals

Emolument band:

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the

FrENEEE -

£ %1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,0017%& 7t — 1,500,000/ 7T
2,000,00178 7t — 2,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T

(c)

Group to any of the directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, none of the directors waived any emoluments
during the reporting period (2017: Nil).

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA
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2018 2017
20184 20174
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FA - AEEREFERESNK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

PRC corporate income tax is calculated at a standard rate
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits arising from the
operation of the PRC subsidiary.

FriBiRx

EENEHEBRBEFEANGTERTUS
F1216.5% (20174 : 16.5% ) £
o

R EMSHRET BEMNE AR
B P 2 (hET RS FIRAR R
FO5%TE o

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERTTE — BB RIS

— Provision for the year —FRHEHE

— One-off deduction ——RMER
Current tax- PRC BIEATR IE — AR

— Provision for the year —FRHEHE
Deferred tax (note 24) BIERSIB (A 7E24)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate is as follows:

5,097,164 3,691,480

(180,000) (80,000)

4,917,164 3,611,480

2,520,373 -

(74,003) (291,379)

7,363,534 3,320,101

FIT 1S58 7 32 B BR % A M SR BB NS
B RS AR

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Profit before tax B AT A

38,326,490 13,508,279

Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate  3Z AN £ 16.5% (20174 -

of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5% )zt EHHIE
Effect of different tax calculation basis  Fr Bl 5T EEA A By 57 £
for the PRC
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ HB7E:EH WA BT IS E
Tax effect of expenses that are not PR S &
deductible
One-off deduction — R
Income tax expense FIEHiMA

6,323,871 2,228,866

856,928

(1,619,852) (122,764)

1,982,587 1,293,999

(180,000) (80,000)

7,363,534 3,320,101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

14.

15.

16.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$28,694,621
(2017: HK$10,188,178) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 769,956,447 (2017: 551,296,720) in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The effect of the Company’s outstanding share options for
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018 did not give rise
to any dilution effect to the earnings per share.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
March 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.
(2017: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

14.

15.

16.

ZREAR
SREXRF

ARBHEBEAREERELRAR
VER @ NYNECIR 7 RS WYXl bl
28,694,621 7L(20174 : 10,188,178
B7C) RERE BT E BAIIE S H
769,956,447/% (2017 : 551,296,720

B3 -
SRBARF

HZE2017F K2018E3 31 A I
B RRARIMEATEBERENZE
WS AR EE T E#ETE -

’E

HZE2018F3A31H ILFEMES
SEFIRMEMKEE - B3E RS
RUREEEAREHBENEZZR
RHEMIZ B (20174 « £&) -

RKEREE

AEBRBEDERHIELTESETENE
BlAFAEBNE EKE SR 58
MAEerE([BESETE]) - A&
EHRESTENEARDIBRETRE X
ITE&S%:tE(BNEBIBAGEERE
1,500 7T) + BEFATTFals
CETEINTERREEMNA °



17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

17. Y% - MERRE

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
buildings  improvement and fixture equipment vehicle Total
HELH e
kEF NE£E  GRAREE BAZRE HE At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT B BT

COST AR
At 1 April 2016 #2016F4A1H - 3,925,767 1,722,624 2,891,146 3445918 11,985,455
Additions NE 9,512,507 138,350 109,237 604,854 - 10,364,948
Disposal & - - - - (181,724) (181,724)
At31March2017and  R201743A318 K

1 April 2017 2017£4A1H 9,512,507 4,064,117 1,831,861 3,496,000 3264194 22,168,679
Additions NE - 85,900 1,060 315,415 172,246 574,621
Disposal & - - - - (377,383) (377,383)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 9,512,507 4,150,017 1,832,921 3,811,415 3,009,057 22,365,917
ACCUMULATED ZEERAE

DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2016 R2016E4A1H - 2,857,531 623,328 2,349,611 2,702,327 8,532,797
Provided during the year ~ E R/ - 339,483 163,367 328,748 331,699 1,163,297
Disposal il - - - - (181,724) (181,724)
At31March2017and  R201743A31E R

1 April 2017 2017F4A1H - 3,197,014 786,695 2,678,359 2,852,302 9,514,370
Provided during the year ~ E R/ 306,855 346,989 166,615 384,329 260,339 1,465,127
Disposal ik - - - - (377,383) (377.383)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 306,855 3,544,003 953,310 3,062,688 2735258 10,602,114
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 9,205,652 606,014 879,611 748 727 323799 11,763,803
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3A31H 9,512,507 867,103 1,045,166 817,641 411892 12,654,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BMERZE (&)
(continued)
At 31 March 2018 the carrying amount of motor vehicle 3/\\\201853331 H- $%$E%)§Eﬂf§
held by the Group under finance leases amounted to %E%?%EE@;%EE@EEE{E_;%:&Z&?%;%
HK$323,799 (2017: HK$411,892). TC(20174F : 411,892 7T) °
At 31 March 2018, the leasehold land and buildings with 7 2018 $35 318 ' EEFEA
net carrying amount of HK$9,205,652 was pledged to 9,205,652/ 7T (20174 « ) MHE L
secure bank facilities granted to the Group (2017: Nil). iﬁﬁﬁ@?_ﬁ\f’ﬁ?ﬁﬁ AR T ARE
EARITHE ©
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REWF
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April R4A1H 28,817,301 -
Additions NE - 28,817,301
Fair value gain on an investment —RHIREMEN A ERR
property 3,182,699 -
At 31 March MR3HA31H 32,000,000 28,817,301
Investment property was revalued at 31 March 2018 on the WEYE B A E X (EBNRoma
open market value basis by reference to market evidence Appraisals Group 2= F2 LU ¥ 3 1Y 31 HA
of recent transactions for similar properties by Roma XS5 MGHEE IR AR EEER2018
Appraisals Group, an independent professional valuer. F3A3IHEG -

1 46 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. BEEE

Customer Computer
contracts software Total
EEEH EiEE MY aF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
COST 2%
At 1 April 2016 20164 A1H - - -
Addition //J\E - 6,550,000 6,550,000
Acquired through business BEKEHUEE

combination 2,054,247 - 2,054,247
At 31 March 2017, MR201743A31H -

1 April 2017 and 2017F4H1B X

31 March 2018 2018F3H31H 2,054,247 6,550,000 8,604,247
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 2t
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4A1H - - -
Amortisation for the year F N5 308,137 409,375 717 512
At 31 March 2017 and MR2017%F3A31H &

1 April 2017 20174 H1H 308,137 409,375 717,512
Amortisation for the year FE R 410,849 1,637,500 2,048,349
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 718,986 2,046,875 2,765,861
CARRYING AMOUNT: BRMEE :

At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 1,335,261 4,503,125 5,838,386
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3A31H 1,746,110 6,140,625 7,886,735

The customer contracts are the property management
business’s critical value driver. They represent the values of
rights that arise from contractual arrangement. The average

8$h - Ea

remaining amortisation period of the customer contract is 3

years.

The computer software is an internal management system
which functions address book management for office
usage, office communication and office bulletin for property
management business. The average remaining amortisation

period of the computer software is 3 years.

BEPANRMEEEREKNHTIREE

WL FELENENEE -

BT AN EIR RS
i%LMLﬂﬁEﬁ Y EE IR ETE
SR NSNS /NN
HH I I EA B3F -

BEFAHM ORI IER3F

C AER A
o - BIEEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

20. SUBSIDIARIES 20. B A E]
Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31 KRB EEWBRAIN2018F3 A31
March 2018 are set out below: A2 sFEEaT -
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest
incorporation/ Issued and attributable to
Name registration paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HMEL/ NG L 2N
£ B BEATRAERG RENESL TEXRHB
Kong Shum Union Property Management  British Virgin 11 shares of 100% direct Investment holding
Group Limited (“KSG") Islands US$1.00 each
BRBRNFERERERARKSG)) ZHERLHES 1IRERERE 100%E% RERR
100 TH AR
Kong Shum Union Property Management ~ Hong Kong HK$22,000,000  100% indirect Provision of property management
Company Limited (“KSU") services
BRABENFERERAR(EREE]) B# 22,000,000 100%fE#% REMEEERY
K-King Cleaning Services Limited (“K-King") Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Provision of cleaning services
EYR2RBARLA(ED]) &b 100%7 100% 4 REEZRHS
Q&V Security Company Limited (“Q&V") ~ Hong Kong HK$2,100,000 100% indirect Provision of security services
BREGABRAR(ER]) &h 2,100,000 100%M#E BRALRZ R
Yorkshire Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% indirect Provision of property management
("YSL") services
NREVSERRBARDACYSL) &4 100000087 100%fH#E MR ER RS
More Rise Investment Limited (“MRIL") Hong Kong HK$2.00 100% indirect Properties investment
AEREBRAR(TMRIL) A 20047 100% % MERE
Fortune Trend Investment Limited (“FTIL") ~ Hong Kong HK$2.00 100% indirect Properties investment
HEREERAR(FTIL)) BB 2007 100% % NERE
Lucky Stone Investments Limited (“LSI") ~ British Virgin 1 share of 100% direct Investment holding
Islands US$1.00 each
Lucky Stone Investments Limited([LSI]) ~ EBREXEE IRERAEE 100%E% RARR
1.00ET#IAR D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. B DT (E)
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest
incorporation/ Issued and attributable to
Name registration paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ NG L 2N
£ B BEOTRARRG RENEIL TEER
Lucky Stone Property Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Dormant
Lucky Stone Property Investment Limited &/ 100%7T 100%FEz gmEx
Lucky Stone Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Money lending business
Lucky Stone Finance Limited 7B 10087 100% &% HEEH
One Direction Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% indirect Dormant
Company Limited
One Direction Property Management i 10,000%7C 100% 8% 2
Company Limited
AN EENERBERAR PRC HK$30,000,000¢  70% indirect Provision of property management
consultancy services
EBRAEENEREAR AR el 30,000,000 70%FEHE REMEERAARE
* The registered capital of J§ 1 X £ F W E R B B R Q 7 is * B AEEMEREER AR ZZMER
HK$30,000,000, of which HK$1,002,263 has been paid up as at 31 #30,000,0007 7T, + E H11,002,2637% 7T
March 2018. ER2018F3A31HEE

Annual Report 2017/18
2017/185F 149



150

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table shows information of a subsidiary that
has non-controlling interests (“NCI”) which is material to the
Group. The summarised financial information represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

20. ME AR ()

HHR 2 S FE

TRIVRBEEHAEEN S BEAN
FEyER R ([ JFIER s ) 2B
AER - MBERBMBEAR A

¥R
BRAF
Name 2018
28 20184
Principal place of business/country of TELEME MR PRC/PRC
incorporation R
% of ownership interests/voting rights IR RITE 2B RORES 30%/30%
held by NCI
At 31 March: M3H31H8 : HK$
BIT
Non-current assets IEMEEE -
Current assets mENVEE 15,041,593
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE -
Current liabilities RENEE (3,966,339)
Net assets BEFE 11,075,254
Accumulated NCI REr IR 3,322,576
Year ended 31 March: HE3A3HIEE -
Revenue Wz 9,497,975
Profit i A 7,561,118
Total comprehensive income FHENSBERE 7,734,378
Profit allocated to NCI Dl E TR E R 2 m 2,268,335
Net cash generated from operating activities L EB TSI FRE 13,294,790
Net cash generated from investing activities KE RS REFRE 1,343
Net cash generated from financing activities BE BB FTEIR S FRE -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re RIReEBYIEINFE

As at 31 March 2018, the bank and cash balance is
HK$11,951,283 denominated in RMB dollars placed with

banks in the PRC.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

21. GOODWILL 21. &
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
COST A

At 1 April R4A1H 784,704 -
Arising from business combination HEBEHESE - 784,704
At 31 March M3A31H 784,704 784,704

CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 March M3 A31H 784,704 784,704

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The

XA EREERNRBERIRE
BB aR ZEFEHNRSESE
BUu((REELEM]) - HENKEE

carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows: BEDRIT
Total
=
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision of property management TR E 1R RIS
services
YSL YSL 784,704 784,704
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21. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill
Provision of property management services

The recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGU
operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors
for the next five years. The recoverable amount of the
relevant assets has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on the
financial budgets approved by the management covering a
5 year period. Key assumptions used by the management
in the value in use calculations of the cash-generating unit
include budgeted gross profit margin. The pre-tax discount
rate used for estimating the value in use is 19.97%.

The assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations in respect of
the property management market in the Hong Kong.

The management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its key
estimates.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

21. BE (&)

EERE R
EBRYFEEERE

ReELBMm e RMEE
ARG REEFANEEREEETE
MEBREREZEZNEBREREHA/
BE - EERR  BEEMNEREAR
B AEBERAARKRETSEHE
BEREENFEIREELEEMNS
E R R B AT KA ETRAIR K - 18
REDUREELEMREXHME
wEH R FHEEERRQELE -
BEEMERWATI OB EE B &
MIGERNBHAEE -

AEBRHENR T RETR IR &
HEFHENRRAFHHEE
- HBAEENAREEEREE
B ENDFRMEREREERE
MR RERANAEREERFEE
o BEBRACELEMERER
AEAEIERREEBEENE -
FRERAEREENRATRR RS
19.97% -

EHEBRRERBEBERANEERY
REEMEEENSNHEMETE -

& I8 G IR S0 R A0 A A T
L& HENAEREH EEfLL



22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE
POLICIES

22. RARRBREFANRE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits placed for life insurance HASRBRREFTANZ S
policies 8,382,078 8,169,842

The Group can terminate the policies at any time and
receive cash refund based on the cash value of the policies
at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront
payment plus accumulated interest earned and minus the
expense charged at inception, the accumulated insurance
charge and policy expense charge.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
ASSOCIATE

7R 5 [ A] PME AR B (R AR LR R AR BB AR
BRRRZREZReEERKERS
R M TIRIBTRN R R PARILZ R
ST R HIR A SR B R S AN 2 B
XEM RFREMREEARXM

23. B —BBHEQRANES

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits for acquisition of equity interest FtU B —fEEE & A BIRRAER IR &
of an associate - 28,350,000

On 13 February 2017, LSI, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sales and purchase agreement
with Mr. Chang Tin Duk, Victor (“Mr. Chang”) to purchase
30% of the equity interest of Dakin Holdings Inc. (“Dakin”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, at a total consideration of HK$31,500,000.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had paid deposits in the
sum of HK$28,350,000 in cash. Upon completion, the
Group shall pay to Mr. Chang HK$3,150,000, being the
remaining balance of the consideration in cash. Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
13 February 2017.

The transaction was completed on 28 April 2017. Upon
completion, the Group is holding 30% of the equity interest
of Dakin which has become an associate of the Group. For
more detail, please refer to note 25.

MN2017F2 138 » XA 7 &2 &N
BARRILSIERREAE([FREE])
513 B & 1 3% LA B8 Dakin Holdings
Inc. ([ Dakin ] )30% M #E - BRE A
31,500,000 7T ° Dakin & 7 3 B &
ZREFMKIZHBR AR  1K2017
#3A31H - AEBURS NS
28,350,000 7T - M T BF + A&
E#HABRemMRLESINRERE
3,150,000/ 7 » #E—FFHBHN AR
AIBERA201742 A 13H M)A ©

RHEN2017F4A28B MK © TTHK
& - AREEFFA Dakin®30% A% -
DakinfX S AR E M B A N 7] - BRAE
ZEHE - AERMIEE2S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

24,

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group.

EERIEEE AF

AT RAEEEANEZRIERAR
BEREE -

Fair value
adjustment
Accelerated Decelerated arising from
tax tax Provisions husiness
depreciation depreciation (note) combination Total
BfE EREHELN
MEREHRE  AEHERE (HaE) NERR &t
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT BT
At 1 April 2016 R2016%4A1H (29,762) 20 2,336,533 - 2,306,791
Arising from business REBEHES
combination - - - (338,951) (338,951)
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss  RER(EBZEINR),/
for the year iABE
- Origination and reversal of ~ — R ZBARRREE
temporary differences (18,428) 4,807 254,157 50,843 291,379
At 31 March 2017 and M2017F3A31A %
1 April 2017 2017F4R18 (48,190) 4827 2,590,690 (288,108) 2,259,219
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss AR B B&H8),/
for the year HIN
- Origination and reversal of ~ —ZE ZBEATE L EE
temporary differences (49,735) (10,211) 66,159 67,790 74,003
At 31 March 2018 #2018F3A31R (97,925) (5,384) 2,656,849 (220,318) 2,333,222

Note:  Provisions represent the temporary differences of provision for
certain expenses (including provisions for long service payments,
unrealised annual leaves and bonuses) made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which would only be allowed for

tax deduction when these expenses were actually paid.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA
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24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24, BEEBIBEEE AEHE)
(continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances RTINS R MR AR TR 4 5 (AR K 85
(after offset) for statement of financial position purposes: B)DIAT -
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT PBTT
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (220,318) (288,108)
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE B 2,553,540 2,547,327

2,333,222 2,259,219

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. R—REEEQATNKRE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong REEZ I FTRE
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 13,849,612 -
Goodwill EES 22,649,459 -
36,499,071 -
Below is the information of the associate. The associate is T BEERRZER - ZBtE QA
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using AR AR A SRR AR o

the equity method.
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25. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Principal place of
bhusiness/country of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

25. R—EBE N FRNRE (FH)

% of ownership interests/voting

Name incorporation Principal activities rights held by the Company
TEEEWE M QAR EZRER/
28 BIBER TEER RRE%
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Dakin Holding Inc. Hong Kong/BVI Provision of financial services in 30%/30% -
Hong Kong
Dakin Holding Inc. BE/EBRLES NEBRESHRE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets EMENEE 19,979,229 -
Current assets mBNEE 128,285,256 -
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (3,046,620) -
Current liabilities mBAE (99,052,491) -
Net assets BEFE 46,165,374 -
Group’s share of net assets REBAMEEEFE 13,849,612 -
Goodwill BES 22,649,459 -
Group’s share of carrying amount of REESGE=RAE
interests 36,499,071 -
Revenue — post-acquisition WU Eg % 70,211,504 -
Profit and total comprehensive income — & #l| & 2 IS 4258 — BB 12
post-acquisition 16,663,570 -

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA




26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

26. B 5 K HARURRIR

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade receivables =) e 50,221,847 47,009,460

Loan receivables (note) R E (M) 3,627,534 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFIE - e Rk

receivables Hh FEU IR 18,652,256 14,904,664

72,501,637 61,914,124

AEEYEFAETPETEER(2017
FE) o  REEREBBEHERE
BNREKFE SREEERESTE
HimaT AR

The Group does not grant credit terms to its customers
(2017: Nil).The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the senior management and directors.

Mt - EARERR2017F6 A5AKE - 8
201746 A 1B RE+—EA - &E
20185 3A31R L5 E - MEXB RS
B ERDIETEILE=TT

Note: The money lenders license is granted on 15 June 2017 for a period
of twelve months from 15 June 2017. Money lending business is a
new segment for the year ended 31 March 2018. The loan is lent to
an independent third party.

ERBZRMEIGRERESEK
SRR DT

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

1 to 30 days 1%230H 11,399,550 10,193,862
31 to 60 days 31z260H 33,115,405 28,261,606
61 to 90 days 61%290H 2,310,673 3,924,994
Over 90 days @90 H 3,396,219 4,628,998
50,221,847 47,009,460

The aging analysis of loan receivables are due within 90

days.

FE W E AR D TR0 B M EH] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E5 R HEMBWRIEGE)

(continued)

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$50,221,847
(2017: HK$47,009,460) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have good settlement records
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information.

MN2018F3A31H - B FEWHKIE
50,221,847 7T (20174 = 47,009,460
BIL)EBEEY RRE - HEHEEIT
TR EECENEBYREER -

B HHE R E B W IR T B % 4
AEEARUENFCHENELBR
RIBBEESR EERREEERYL
BEREY  HERGHRIDBR SR
EEURE - UL BA RS AR
ER -

AEBRBEEBYBREERFIRLZ
BRTEREE S R IAEAE
HEERGERREHEREREEE -
RETEAMEEER - B5RWHIA
EREBEXZFRRFENEAHNEHY
18- RHIEEERINE 2 AEIEER -

Over 90
but less then

Over 30 Over 60 365 days
days past days past days past

Past due due due due Total
BH90R
B
BY BH08  @He0A 365H @t
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H
Expected loss rate BEERELE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivables amount (HK$) FEME (B TT) 11,399,550 33,115405 2,310,673 3,396,219 50,221,847
Loss allowance (HK$) BERE(ET) - - - - -
At 31 March 2017 201743 H31H
Expected loss rate BHEELE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivables amount (HK$) FEWEIR(BTT) 10,193,862 28,261,606 3924994 4628998 47,009,460
Loss allowance (HK$) BERE(ET) - - - - -

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA



26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Details of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are as follows:

26. E5 K HE AR ()

TIOR8 R A U OR S
m -

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Prepayments FafFIE 2,939,766 1,077,240
Deposits e 1,490,304 3,631,991
Other receivables (note) E b ERIE (A aE) 14,222,186 10,195,433
18,652,256 14,904,664

Note: Other receivables mainly included amounts paid on behalf of

incorporated owners for property management.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Wit - UGB 20ERE T REE X
NEEERIA -

27. CERFRITERK

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Pledged bank deposits BRI TIERK 10,176,374 7,105,972

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The pledged bank deposits are denominated in
HK$ and are made for varying periods of between one day
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirement
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The annual interest rate of 0.01% to 0.3% (2017:
0.01% to 0.3%) as at 31 March 2018.

AEEZ BRBRITERIBLGE VB
WEMAAMBEEIFFRITZHF
K EAAEEERBITRENIK
o BEPIRITFRIABITEE - B
BH—HEZE—F17% BIEAEBEZ
BB ZkmE - BB EBHTH
FERF KRB - BITEEH LB RIBTE
REEEORITEHERLS  E8R
1 2 8817 - 2201843 A31 HHYF A
Z50.01%%0.3% (20174 : 0.01% %=
0.3%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

28. BERRETEEY

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cash on hand FERE 311,005 304,006
Bank balances IRTTHERR 53,853,633 44 860,984
54,164,638 45,164,990

The cash and bank balances are denominated in HK$ and
RMB.

As at 31 March 2018, the board and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$11,951,283
(2017: Nil). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulation.

29. INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

RE MRTEHRABTMAREHE -

M2018%3H31H » REFNUARK
EMIEITRIES 8 511,951,283
BT (20174 « £8]) - ARME S AN
e R BIANE BATE R RIARIR o

29. BAREFABRNRE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Unlisted convertible notes JE AT IR =
Acquisition g 34,769,204 -
Change in fair value NREEDH 1,347,877 -
Interest income FBUA 1,676,712 -
37,793,793 -

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

29. INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On 14 July 2017, Oceanic Alliance Investments Limited (the
“Seller”), and Lucky Stone Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Buyer”), entered
into an agreement in relation to the acquisition of convertible
notes of principal amount of AUD 6,000,000 (the “CN”) (for
the agreement, the “CN Agreement”).

Subject to the satisfaction (or waiver) of the conditions
precedent as set out in the CN Agreement, the Buyer
conditionally agrees to acquire the CN from the Seller
at a total consideration of HK$36,000,000 (equivalent
to AUD6,000,000, using an agreed exchange rate of
AUD1=HK$6 and being the face value of the aggregate
principal amount of the CN) (the “CN Acquisition”). The CN
of the principal amount of AUD6,000,000 with a maturity
date on 1 March 2019 are issued by ASF Group Limited,
a public company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia, with its issued shares being listed on
the Australian Stock Exchange Limited (CAN 008 624 691)
(the “Issuer”) and are unsecured and not listed on any stock
exchange. Further, the Buyer agrees to pay to the Seller
an accrued interest of the CN from 1 April 2017 and up
to the completion date specified under the CN Agreement
(both date inclusive) to be calculated at an interest rate of
10% per annum in accordance with terms of a deed of CN
entered into between the Seller and the Issuer.

The acquisition of the CN was completed on 12 October
2017. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 13 October 2017.

29. BRAREFABRNRE(E)

201757 A14H - Oceanic Alliance
Investments Limited ([ & 77 |) E2AXA 7]
&M EB A alLucky Stone Investments
Limted ([EHF ) KBRS E B
6,000,000;8 T #y AT #A AR 15 ([ AT # A%
ER DI (ipEmE - [ AR
REBERZE]) °

RO AR 22 9B 19 ok P ST R (G 1
B(ERR)%E  BEFEGKHERE
MEAFREITRBEEE  RREA
36,000,0007% 7T (48 & 7 6,000,0008
TCc B EER DR T= 6757T) - BlA]
BREBEASBE  HE( TBRERE
BUWIEEIE]) - AR EHR BB
EEEERAR([EITAIET K
4 %8.46,000,000;87T © FIHIH A2019
FIA1H - BEEE R ERERE
ERXGFEM  BHAUMEEERRA
AlA—RARNBEMNEMKIEEFPHA
FRHBERAG  HEBITRHOMNE
M & % 32 5 BT (CAN 008 624 691) +
me ks EFRIEB2017F4/18
REARREEWZS AT B H
(BIEERERAB)AE A A RRE
B2EAFE - BEFNEREE M
BITARI L 2 R BEZIBGRZ
FEREIO%ETE o

U BB AT IR RS =R B R 20174610 12H
TR - BRFEE  MA2MA AR HE
A2017F10A 1388 A »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. EZ R HMENFIE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade payables =) ANE/ 1,138,952 1,147,980
Building management deposits received 2 HWIEFEIRIZ S 4,348,892 4,297,586
Accruals and other payables FEFTIRE R R HME IR 40,059,010 50,494,669
Provision for long service payment REABRTS & B HE 9,006,647 8,066,116
54,553,501 64,006,351

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

B ZRNFRAREREHORE DT

date, is as follows: (RN
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
1 to 30 days 1% 30H 1,138,952 1,147,980

Details of the accruals and other payables are as follows:

fEETIRE A R A A SRR T

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Accrued staff cost and staff benefit JEEHRE TR(A K B TaF 23,236,330 20,148,888
Accrued staff bonus and annual leave  FEEHE S TIE4L R ER 7,095,479 7,635,048
Accrued expenses FERTHRFIX 1,117,097 1,268,952
Amount due to a director B —REERIE - 5,500,000
Amount due to a related party 1~ — 2 R 5 508 - 5,500,000
Other payables H b e~ 508 8,610,104 10,441,781
40,059,010 50,494,669

1 62 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA




30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

30. B RHEMEMARKIE(E)

Movement of provision for long services payment is stated REBRG S BEZEBETIDT -
as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April RA4A1H 8,066,116 7,501,066
Provision made during the year FREE 2,914,045 2,195,177
Paid during the year FARFR (1,973,514)  (1,630,127)
At 31 March A3H31H 9,006,647 8,066,116
BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED 31, HIFEE — A
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank loans, secured IRITER - BIRF 9,869,600 5,240,401
Bank overdrafts, secured IR1THES - B - 4,129,863
9,869,600 9,370,264
The borrowings are repayable as follows: JEEZEENT :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
On demand or within one year BRERYRN—FA 9,869,600 9,370,264
Less: Amount due for settlement within ~ J& : 71218 A R 2| H8
12 months (shown under current TROFEGAEREERE)
liabilities) (9,869,600) (9,370,264)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 1& 2 HA 2 SO RO
12 months - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

31. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED (continued)

The average interest rates at 31 March were as follows:

31. RITEE - FEHFE)

M3A3LERFHFEMT -

2018 2017

20184 20174

% %

Bank loans, secured IRITER - BRI 2.42% 2.61%
Bank overdrafts, secured RITHESY - BRI NILEZE 6.25%

As at 31 March 2018, borrowings of the Group denominated
in HKS.

The Group’s banking facilities were secured by:

(a) Pledge of deposits placed for life insurance (note 22);
(b) Pledge of the Group’s fixed bank deposits (note 27);
(c) Unlimited guarantee by related companies (note 41);

(d) Joint and several unlimited personal guarantees by a
director of the Company and a director of a subsidiary
(note 41); and

(e) Various Counter Indemnities for issuance of
performance bonds.

As at 31 March 2018, banking facilities granted to the
Group are approximately HK$52.9 million (2017: HK$58.5
million).

As at 31 March 2018, approximately HK$25.6 million (2017:
HK$29.8 million) of the banking facilities have been utilised
by the Group.

1 64 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

MR2018F3HA31H » AEBEEELS
JCHIME °

AEBRIRITRYE B T 5B IR -

(a) EHEMASRBRTANZS (K
s22)

(b) IR B FE BIR 17 17 7k (B
£¥27)

(c) MIMEER A A EPR TR (K
s¥41)

(d) AR —BREZFLMBAR—%
SR MME R EREREALE
R(MIEE4L) + J2

(e) MBELBAORESIFLZANT

BRE -

MR2018F3H31H » BT AREERIR
TR E 495,2908 % 7T (20174 : 5,850
BB o

M20184E3A31H » #2,5608 % 7T
(20174 : 29808 B L) MIRTTRED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

32. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 32. EmERERE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
RERLMLR REHRNSTHREE
2018 2017 2018 2017
201845 20174 20184 20174
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 147,936 226,611 140,288 219,346
In the second to fifth years, SE_FZFHF
inclusive (BEEEMT) 90,626 84,695 83,847 83,805
238,562 311,306 224,135 303,151
Less: Future finance charge i : AR BE X (14,427) (8,155) - -
Present value of lease HERIERE
obligations 224,135 303,151
Less: Amount due for B =18 A AEIER
settlement within 12 months X&) FIE
(shown under current B BRBEE)
liabilities) (140,288) (219,346)

Amount due for settlement  +—1{& B & B &Y

after 12 months A 83,847 83,805
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles AEBHRRAEURMEHMERESRETA
under finance leases. The average lease term is 3 years. At B o FHHEEIA3F - R2018F3 A31
31 March 2018, the average effective borrowing rate was A FHEBREBENERREFIERE
at the rate per annum of 3.8% to 4.27% (2017: 3.8% to 4.27% (20174 : 3.8%E4.27%) ° #
4.27%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and EREHRBEE  NEERHEAE
thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All AAENERRE - FIEHAOKETEE
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements HEE - WERIAEENHET LR
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At e MEHEBRERE  AEBFIRE
the end of each lease term, the Group has the option to EZEEEERE -
purchase the motor vehicles at nominal prices.
All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong FEENREREFIRS S ITAHE -
dollars.
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33. PROMISSORY NOTES PAYABLES

Promissory note (A)

On 31 March 2017, the Company issued two promissory
notes of HK$7,000,000 each to settle part of the
consideration in the acquisition of the 100% equity interest
in MRIL and FTIL.

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The sum of
HK$14,000,000 is to be repaid on the date following 18
months after the date of issuance. The fair value of the
promissory notes were HK$12,157,882 on initial recognition
which was measured by computing the present value of
estimated future cash flows at the effective interest rate
of 10%. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 February 2017 and 31 March 2017.

In September 2017, the Company repaid HK$6,000,000 of
the promissory note and recorded a loss on early settlement
of HK$561,182.

During the year, imputed interest of HK$955,777 (2017: Nil)
was charged to the consolidated profit or loss.

Promissory note (B)

On 12 October 2017,the Company issued a promissory
note of HK$20,000,000 to settle part of the consideration in
acquisition of the convertible notes in a company listed on
the Australian Stock Exchange Limited (note 29).

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The sum of
HK$20,000,000 is to be repaid on the date following 18
months after the date of issuance. The fair value of the
promissory note was HK$18,769,204 on initial recognition
which was measured by computing the present value of
estimated future cash flows at the effective interest rate of
6.3%.

On 30 November 2017, the promissory note was early
settled. The Group recorded a loss of HK$1,123,678 on
early settlement of this promissory note.

During the year, imputed interest of HK$107,118 (2017:
nil) for this promissory note was charged to the consolidated
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

33. PROMISSORY NOTES PAYABLES (continued) 33. FE{&3 Z {8 ()

34.

Promissory note (B) (continued) AR EEB) (&)
2018 2017
20184 20174
Promissory Promissory Promissory Promissory
Note (A) Note (B) Note (A) Note (B)
AREEBMR) EEREEB) ALFERA  EHLEEB)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At initial recognition R TR 12,157,882 18,769,204 12,157,882 —
Loss on early settlement of ~ 1RREEALEE Y
promissory notes B 561,182 1,123,678 - -
Interest charged BRI & 955,777 107,118 - -
Repayment BR (6,000,000) (20,000,000) - -
7,674,841 - 12,157,882 -
SHARE CAPITAL 34. BA&
Number of
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each shares HK$
SREE0.01B THLER RBEE BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EE0.OLE LA L AL
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and MR2016%F4H1H ~ 201743A31H
31 March 2018 N2018%F3A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRABRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEO.OLE TR LA
At 1 April 2016 M20165F4H1H 495,151,515 4,951,515
Issue of shares on placement P E R TRR (D 99,000,000 990,000
At 31 March 2017 201743 A31 8 594,151,515 5,941,515
Issue of shares on placement P E R TRR (D 261,200,000 2,612,000
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3H31H 855,351,515 8,553,515
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

On 18 August 2016, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the
placement of 99,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.23 per share.
The placement was completed on 6 September 2016
and the premium on the issue of shares, amounting to
approximately HK$21.0 million, net of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.8 million, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

On 11 May 2017, the Company and the placing agent
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the
placement of 118,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.24 per share. The placement was
completed on 26 May 2017 and the premium on the issue
of shares, amounting to approximately HK$26.5 million, net
of share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.86 million
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 29 August 2017, the Company and the placing agent
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement
of 142,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.145 per share. The placement was completed
on 21 September 2017 and the premium on the issue of
shares, amounting to approximately HK$18.6 million, net of
share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.63 million was
credited to the Company’s share premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, retained profits and other reserves).
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. ZREH & HRERM T
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction (@ EXFREXRS

(i) During the year, the Group acquired convertible (i) FA - RNEBELARZA36000000
notes (note 29) of the principal amount of AUD AT IE R —ERAHE
6,000,000 issued by a listed company in Australia ETmAABTAEEAR
at the cost of HK$36,000,000. The consideration 6,000,000 JT #) 7] #2 i% =
was settled by issue of promissory note and cash. B (FE29) - REBEBBETT
The principal amount of the promissory note is ARERENIBSEE - A},
HK$20,000,000. YL R4 58 420,000,000/

5T o

(i) The consideration of HK$31,500,000 for the (i) U B& Dakin #31,500,000 /&
acquisition of Dakin which were partly settled by TREBDBEALE—FEL
the deposit of HK$28,350,000 paid in last year 5 2 ¥ % 28,350,000/% 7T M
and cash of HK$3,150,000. 3,150,000/ IR e 45 E -

(i) Additions to property, plant and equipment (i) FRRNEWE - BENE&E
during the year of HK$172,246 (2017: Nil) were 172,246 70 (2017 4F + £%)
financed by finance leases. HREHERNES -

Change in liabilities arising from financing (b) REMEIHEEEH

activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in TREINASEFARERE S

liabilities arising from financing activities during the FoaEgs -

year:

Promissory Total liabilities
notes Bank  Finance leases  from financing
payahles Borrowings payahles activities
EfmE BEEH
ERRIRE RITEE RERE BEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT e
At 31 March 2017 and R2017E3A318 K
1 April 2017 2017F4R1R 12,157,882 9,370,264 303,151 21,831,297

Changes in cash flows Benes (26,000,000) 4,629,199 (251,219)  (21,622,020)

Repayment of bank overdrafts ERBTEY - (4,129,863) - (4,129,863)

Non-cash changes: FREEH

— addition —hE 18,769,204 - 172,203 18,941,407

— interest charged —BHHE 1,062,895 - - 1,062,895

— loss on early settlement of —REEERIER

promissory notes ZER 1,684,860 - - 1,684,860

At 31 March 2018 M2018F3A31H 1,674,841 9,869,600 224,135 17,768,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E
36. RESERVES
(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

36. f#iE

(a)

REH

AEBERFHENSBENMERNED
A EmMEMEEKRER R
AR EERANEY -

(b) Company (b) &AF]
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the RABRE22018F3 A31H 1
movements therein for the year ended 31 March 2018 FEMNRESERERHES N
are as follows: T
Equity
Share investment
Share option Contributed revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve srplus reserve losses Total
R&%E
RAEE BRERE gARH Eftfif i HE At
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2016 R016F4A1H 74982817 3,872,000 4750,108 (87330000 (20,533,529) 54,338,400
Issue of shares on RERETRG
placement 21,017,315 - - - - 21,017,315
Total comprenensive loss 2 EBERR
for the year - - - (4,267,000) (7.760613)  (12,027,613)
At3IMarch2017and  R201743A318 K
1 April 2017 17%4R18 96,000,132 3,872,000 4,750,108 (13,000,000 (28,294,138) 63,328,102
Issue of shares on RERETRN
placement 45,055,325 - - - - 45,055,325
Total comprehensive loss  FAZABIELE
for the year - - - - (6,745,886) (6,745,886)
M3IMach208  R0I8E3A31R MI085457 3872000 4750108 (130000000  (35040024) 101,637,541

1 70 Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

36. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregated
amounts of issued capital of KSG, KSU, K-King
and Q&V as at 31 March 2013, the date on which
the aggregated issued capital was reallocated to
merger reserve after the Group’s reorganisation
for the purpose of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the Group reorganisation implemented
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and
represented the excess of the then consolidated
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over
the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Share option reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to directors
and consultants of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
3(q) to the consolidated financial statements.

36. (&)
) REHMERRS

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R BER

REFRSHSQRE AR
AR ER CES A HD
KT ARRBIBCR - HEEBERZ
kB BHE - AT
BAERNERENBBED
BEPEIHZER -

B

AU EBER2013F3A31
BHKSG * BREA - EHK
BERZERTRAZES
R PR BRI B BT
GEMEMmE @ W& H Lt
BABERAER 2 E41%
EEHDEEAGHE -

BAEE

RABFHARERTIH AR T
IR0 OB A2 PRGEM £ T T T
AEBSHEMEL - HER
PR B B ARG E EES
BB R R BEITAER
B IRAEERRD -

BREWE

AR S R R R IR TR
NEIEFENER 2 RTTREE
gz B EB 2R
RfE - ERBFBHRERME
3(q) Bh IR AL 45 5 AR A7)

TR FRIR MR 2 G FT R
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Equity investment revaluation reserve

The equity investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity investment through other
comprehensive income held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 3(j)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(vi) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 3(d) to the financial statements.

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 19 September 2013, the Company has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) under which
the board of directors is authorised to grant share options
to any employee, adviser, consultant, service provider,
agent, customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or any subsidiary (including any director of the
Company or any subsidiary) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company
or any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted to
such employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner or any person
who, in the absolute discretion of the board, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible Participants”)
as incentive or reward for their contribution to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Subject to (ii) below, the maximum number of shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option
Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Group shall not exceed such number
of Shares as equals 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme. On 14 August 2015, the Company
successfully sought approval by its shareholders
in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit (the
“Refreshment”). Upon the Refreshment approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 14 August 2015, the Company may grant
Options entitling holders thereof to subscribe for up to
a maximum number of 40,000,000 Shares. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes and exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as refreshed. No further share option was granted after
14 August 2015, Options entitling holders thereof to
subscribe for up to a maximum number of 40,000,000
Shares may be granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme, representing 8.1% of the issued
shares as at 31 March 2016;

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option schemes of
the Group must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Group if this will result in the limit
being exceeded; and

37. ARG A HFRIE (&)

(i)

(i)

SRR - IAMEAT B E R IE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(iii)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options
to an Eligible Participant would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Eligible Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. The Company must
send a circular to the shareholders of the Company
and the circular must disclose the identity of the
Eligible Participant, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and options previously granted
to such Eligible Participant), and such information as
may be required under the GEM Listing Rules from
time to time. The number and terms (including the
subscription price) of options to be granted to such
Eligible Participant must be fixed before approval of
the shareholders of the Company and the date of
meeting of the Board for proposing such further grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose
of calculating the subscription price. The exercise of
any option shall be subject to the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting approving any necessary
increase in the authorised share capital of the
Company. Subject thereto, the Directors shall make
available sufficient of the then authorised but unissued
share capital of the Company to allot the Shares on the
exercise of any option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to
be determined and identified by the Board to each grantee
at the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but
in any event no later than 10 years from the date of grant
but subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

Though there is no specified minimum period under the
Share Option Scheme for which an option must be held or
the performance target which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms and conditions of
the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may make such
grant of options, subject to such terms and conditions
in relation to the minimum period of such options to be
held and/or the performance targets to be achieved as the
Directors may determine in their absolute discretion.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, make offer to the
Eligible Participants. An offer shall be made to an Eligible
Participant in writing in such form as the Directors may
from time to time determine. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by an Eligible Participant concerned
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such Eligible
Participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the Eligible Participant, together
with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company within such time as may be
specified in the offer.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the discretion of the
Directors but in any event will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be
a business day; (b) the average of the closing price of the
Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date of the particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.

37. ARG A HFRIE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
commencing from the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 19 September 2013) until the termination date
as provided therein which being the close of business of the
Company on the date which falls ten years from the date of
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 18 September
2023). The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in Appendix IV to the Prospectus of the Company dated 30

September 2013.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

37. ARG A HFRIE (&)

RERRAERT 2] B BB R T 2 A B HR (B
20139 A19R ) B =% AT &I TR T 42
IE AR - BEERRAERT 2VER 40 B BB fE AT
Wt E 2z B(EN2023F9 A180 ) AR
RIEERBERAEIEERLER - B
REFTEINEZGHRARRIBEA
2013F9 A30H A BAR =2 M &% U [ B8
BerEstEl  — Bt -

BERENREDBFBWT -

Categories Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

Al RHBH 5B TR THEE

HK$

BT

2015(A) 6 February 2015 N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09
5 February 2018
2015(A) 20152 H6H TiEA 2015F2H6H =
2018%2H5H

2015(B) 6 February 2015 6 February 2015 to 30 June 2015 to 1.09
29 June 2015 5 February 2018
2015(B) 201552 HA6H 2015F2H6HE 2015F6 H30RH &
20156 H29H 201852 H5H

2015(C) 6 February 2015 N/A 6 February 2015 to 1.09
5 February 2018
2015(C) 201552 A6H NE 2015F2H6H=E
201852 H5H

2015(D) 6 February 2015 6 February 2015 to 30 June 2015 to 1.09
29 June 2015 5 February 2018
2015(D) 201552 HA6H 2015F2H6HE 20156 H30B =
20156 H29H 201852 H5H

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 37. URHBZAHRIE(E)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are FARMKITEBRENFBOT
as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options exercise price share options exercise price
nEEF 39 nEF
BREZA TRE  BREZE 1IEfE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Outstanding at the beginning & ¥ KRITE
of the year 20,000,000 1.09 20,000,000 1.09
Forfeited during the year F U (20,000,000) -

Outstanding at the end of FRAAITE

the year - 20,000,000 1.09
During the year, Kingston Securities Limited, made the FAR - 2MNEFHFERAA  KKRIE
offers for and on behalf of Heng Sheng to all optionholders ERABREREREAELEZL - U
for the cancellation of all outstanding share option at a price BHERECOIBITMNERTHEMEA
of HK$0.01 per share option. Further details are set out in MARTTEBERE BEZFBEHNAR
the Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2018 and AAEAR2018F 1 H24H 201852 A
22 February 2018. 228 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843531 H I F/E

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@

(b)

Performance bond and incorporated owners’ fund

Performance bond has been issued by several banks
as the Group maintains certain incorporated owners’
funds in the form of client accounts which were held
on trust for and on behalf of the incorporated owners.
These client accounts are not recognised as assets and
associated liabilities in the financial statements of the
Group. At the end of reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it probable that a claim
on the performance bonds will be made against the
Group.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount of outstanding
performance bond was approximately HK$15.7 million
(2017: HK$20.4 million).

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of the
bank balances in the client accounts not dealt with
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is approximately HK$43.7 million (2017: HK$40.8
million).

Legal cases

In carrying out the ordinary course of business,
the Group is subject to the risk of being named
as defendant in legal actions, claims and disputes
in connection with its business activities. The
nature of the legal proceedings initiated against the
Group generally include (i) claims for employees’
compensation by the Group’s employees; (ii) claims
for personal injury caused by the negligence of the
Group and owners’ corporations of the properties by
passersby, residents or other users of the respective
properties; (iii) claims for property damage or
economic loss caused by the negligence of the Group
and owners’ corporations of the properties by residents
or other users of the respective properties; and (iv)
claims for property damage caused by the negligence
of individual flat owners by other residents or users
of the respective properties. The Group maintains
insurance cover and, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, based on current evidence, any such
existing claims have no material financial impact to the
Group as at 31 March 2018.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA

38. REE

(a)

(b)

BHARBEREIVRZEIEES

SHMBTEREBORES R
RAKEBAESES (AR
REEVEEBEEHALR)
REETLEIUREDES - %
%% 85 5 3 0 A £ 81 7 4R
RERBEERAMALRE - A8
LK ARANEERAYRE
B BARE S R et
K o

R201843A31H » KERNEXD
RFBESL 4 AR1,5708 7% 7T (2017
12040878 7T) °

MR2018F3A31H BEFERFK
RERAREBLE MG HRRBIE
RIRTTH GRS TEL B4,3708
AT (20174 : 4,0808787T) °

FRESEES

RETEHEEHBRET  A&H
REEBEF A EERERTE
RENFFP AR S M E LR
@ o MAKBERDEREFOME
BEXBLBROAEENEERL
RERERLNRE : (DAKE
RO FEF I REERAG S
ﬁMA%x1 - AR EAE
CERFEIEMERALRLESN
TE:M$$I&%¥W%I4
FEBRAG B B MEEERE
KAEEBRK - HAEDENER
SEMEAALTRENRE &
(iv) 18 5l Bz 3¢ T i 72 5] Ze ¥ %
BERE AREVENEDE
EREMALRENRE - A&

B M RBIREHRE - MARRE
ERAE - BIEBRIEE - 12018
F3A31H  EAZEREAERE

BrEeHAREERNEAMBEY
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

39. BEAEIE

REERBEARNEAATELLT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment in an associate R—EEE AR E
Contracted but not provided for in the 2 &I 4MBERP B TETHRE
financial statements in respect of AN EE EarlE L BE
unpaid balance of capital contributions - 3,150,000
LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. FHLERIE
Commitments under operating leases REHNIE N AE

As lessee

At 31 March 2018 the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

TERBFAMA

MA2018F3HA31H @ TalHs&E LM
WA THRENRRZEBEDONRATE
N

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$ HK$

BT I

Within one year —FN 2,727,436 2,998,800
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERNF(BIEEREMRTE) 3,100 2,202,200
2,730,536 5,201,000

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its offices, a carpark space and a motor
vehicle. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 years
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include
contingent rentals.

REMONFEAKRERESTHRA
= —EECR-#WTEEMNHE
T - WEMORFHEME > MHEE
HAMEREE X AeRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &t #2018%3 /31 H1-F/Z

40. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
Commitments under operating leases (continued)
As lessor
The Group leases out certain of its investment property.

At the end of reporting period, the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable leases are receivables as

40. HAERE (&)
RERYETEE (&)
ERHEA
AEBHBEETREYE - RBE

HIR - D RIBHR A TR T A R MOR 2R
RIEBEAOMFHEAT -

follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 1,367,823 812,600
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEERAF(RIEEEME) 486,703 388,700
1,854,526 1,201,300

Operating lease income represent rentals receivables by the
Group for its investment properties. Leases are negotiated
for terms of 2 years and rentals are fixed over the lease
terms and do not include contingent rentals.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its
related parties during the year:

RERHWAITEAREERIREYRIE
WS - EBEOHAME - MH
SRS REE X TEENRE

AN
F °

41. BEBAERS
B4R B T SR 2% H b 5P 5 FT 3 B R B

IR RERI REERFREE
BT BUNTRS

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT T
Rental paid to related companies ENEEARES

— MRIL —MRIL - 384,000

— Kong Shum Union (China) Limited — RS (RE) AR AR
(“KSU China”) ([BREEEHE ) 592,000 568,000
Compensation paid to directors ENESEME 3,778,774 5,534,991
Acquisition of MRIL and FTIL I EEMRILZFTIL - 38,157,882

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # 2201843431 H IF F/Z

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi, a director of the Company and Mr. Ho
Ying Cheung, a director of KSU, have control over the
related companies, KSU China, MRIL and FTIL.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr.
Ho Ying Cheung had provided joint and several unlimited
personal guarantees in favour of banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries within the Group (note 31).

On 8 February 2017, KSU, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, a director of KSU and
brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi entered into sale and purchase
agreement to acquire assets and liabilities by way of
acquisition of the entire equity interest in MRIL and FTIL at a
cash consideration of HK$26,000,000 and promissory notes
of sum of HK$12,157,882 (face value: HK$14,000,000).
MRIL and FTIL owned properties located in Hong Kong and
were engaged properties investment business during the
year. The acquisition is for the purpose of expanding the
Group’s business diversity and was completed on 31 March
2017.

1. BBARS ()

RNBIEEMEM L ERBRBAE
] EELEHBENRBRBS
~ MRILJZFTILIE A #2521 4 o

20184 201743 H31H - [ fERs
SERMEFERERAEEBE NET
BB~ R ERRITEER A KRF M E
RIEREREAER(EESL) ©

R201742R888 » KRR ZEKMBA
A RE A B R R & (KRR AE#
TEE)MAEELE(BFRBAES
S ER LA )FTI N B i
LAZR 4 £ 826,000,000 7T & B E A
12,157,882/ 7t (E& : 14,000,000/
JC) B BB UEEMRIL X FTILE &6
BiENHFABEBEEERERE - MRILK
FTILAR BB HADE  REAREY
X¥RNEEK - REREEEZTEH
EAEBER W2 H2017F3A31
H5ERK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #(Z22018% 331 H 1 F/Z

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

43.

42, R BFBARR R

THE COMPANY
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRE R&E 25,577 32,264
Investments in subsidiaries WEMN B AT 4,750,116 4,750,116
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—REHBAA 15,000,000 15,000,000
Deposits for acquisition of an associate  UYgBE —REIEE & A - 28,350,000
19,775,693 48,132,380
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR Bk
receivables H b & W FRIE 343,872 456,804
Amounts due from subsidiaries Ny NGI Q] 84,712,946 12,864,201
Cash and cash equivalents He MIREE 9,676,932 12,988,230
94,733,750 26,309,235
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETRE A Lk A FOR 1,059,650 1,073,012
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTBY B R B 5k I8 3,258,737 4,098,986
4,318,387 5,171,998
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 90,415,363 21,137,237
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 110,191,056 69,269,617
NET ASSETS BEEFE 110,191,056 69,269,617
EQUITY s
Share capital f& A 8,553,515 5,941,515
Reserves ] 101,637,541 63,328,102
TOTAL EQUITY FEREEE 110,191,056 69,269,617
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. #LETIRBEIRR
These consolidated financial statements were approved and B HREER2018F 6 A22

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 June

2018.

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of  T%I/&

IAEERNBEREVRFRE ZFE

the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from MUREEREE  HEHFEDTERAOKE
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as M EHRERI DA S W INASFHHHE -
appropriate, is set out below.
RESULTS 4
For the years ended 31 March
BZ3A3ALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 20164 2015% 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TET AL THL
Revenue Wegs 412,211 395,514 374,024 339,722 324,981
Cost of services FRAERK A (317,872) (312,206) (295,756) (269,280) (258,781)
Gross profit ES 94,399 83,308 78,268 70,442 66,200
Other revenue Hitlz 8,384 338 1,494 349 279
Share of profit of an associate  JE{5— B & 2 BLRF 4,999
Administrative expenses 1THFEY (49,983) (51,958) (53,823) (44,122) (37,980)
Other operating expenses HigERY (18,144) (17,984) (18,991) (18,717) (19,775)
Finance costs BEMK (1,329) (196) (992) (658) (1,105)
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 38,326 13,508 5,956 7,294 7619
Income tax expense FIEREY (7,363) (3,320) (3,141) (2,320) (2,591)
Net profit for the year FREFNFE 30,963 10,188 2,815 4,974 5,028
Other comprehensive Htv2EKE (EE)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences on REBNEBMESE L
translation of foreign B ERE
operations 173 - - - -
Loss on equity investment NN EEIPNCE
at fair value through other FEBERRAR
comprehensive income REBE - (4,267) (8,733) - -
Other comprehensive income/  FREM2EKE,
(loss) for the year, netof tax ~ (E18) (FARRFIE) 173 (4,267) (8,733) - -
Total comprehensive income/ ~ FRZEUNE /(F#E)
(loss) for the year am 31,136 5,921 (5,918) 4974 5,028
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hAFMBHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERARE

As at 31 March

W3B31A

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

2018 20174 20164 20154 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER T FAIL T TR

Total assets BERE 272,458 203,395 144,871 100,563 115,994

Total liabilities BfERSE (76,381) (87,125) (56,529) (61,276) (62,427)

Net assets EERE 196,077 116,270 88,342 39,287 h3,567
Equity attributable to owners of A2 T HHE A LR

the Company 192,754 116,270 88,342 39,287 53,567

Non-controlling interests FERER 3,323 - - - -

196,077 116,270 88,342 39,287 53,567

Heng Sheng Holdings Limited
EEZERERQA
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